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Annual General Meeting (AGM)
The 88th Annual General Meeting of Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand will be
held at our Melbourne office:
Level 18, 600 Bourke Street,
Melbourne Victoria, Australia
on Wednesday 7th December 2016
at 4.30pm.
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Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand is a professional body
of 117,000 diverse, talented and financially astute members who utilise
their skills every day to make a difference for their clients and the public
the world over.

Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2016

67

Members are known for their professional integrity, principled judgment,
financial discipline and a forward-looking approach to business which
contributes to the prosperity of our nations.
We focus on the education and lifelong learning needs of our members,
and engage in advocacy and thought leadership in areas of public interest
that impact the economy and domestic and international markets.
We are a member of the International Federation of Accountants, and are
connected globally through the 800,000-strong Global Accounting Alliance
and Chartered Accountants Worldwide which brings together leading
Institutes in Australia, England and Wales, Ireland, New Zealand, Scotland
and South Africa to support and promote over 320,000 Chartered
Accountants in more than 180 countries.
We also have a strategic alliance with the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. The alliance represents 788,000 current and
next generation accounting professionals across 181 countries and
is one of the largest accounting alliances in the world providing a full
range of accounting qualifications to students and business.
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CEO & CHAIR’S REPORT
The 2016 financial year has seen us move from a state of
transition, to an organisation that is ready to take on the future.
We’ve brought together the right infrastructure, people and culture,
to deliver the world-class organisation that our members expect. We’ve also
challenged ourselves to go further and deliver the unexpected, ensuring we
can support our members as our profession evolves.
When we formed our organisation in 2015, we wanted to highlight how
Chartered Accountants touch all parts of the community through business.
This year, we shared this vision with more than 23 million people, through
our Art of Prosperity marketing campaign. The campaign championed
the principle that all Chartered Accountants contribute positively to their
organisation, the community in which they work, and therefore to the overall
prosperity of our countries. We will continue with this campaign in the next
financial year.
We’ve deepened our engagement in the key Asian markets of Singapore,
Hong Kong, and Malaysia. We’ve increased our presence through
future[inc] thought-leadership forums and sponsorship of key
business events, enhancing the recognition of our brand.
An important development this year is the
announcement of our initiative to form an alliance
with the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA). It has the potential to deliver
truly global benefits, adding weight to our voice at
home and on the world stage. The alliance marks
a significant opportunity for our organisation to
increase the pre-eminence, relevance and reach
of our CA designation.
Despite the public nature of some of these
initiatives, our focus remains very clearly on you,
our members. During the year, we talked to
members around the world to better understand
how we can improve and create a great member
experience. This ranges from the digital experience
you have when visiting the website, to events and
educational offerings. We serve you and the year
to come will see changes and improvements that
we hope will delight you.
One great example of this is Mentor Exchange, which
has provided a way for members to reach out to create
the next generation of business leaders. With the first
round complete, we’ve received fantastic feedback –
so we will be extending its scope in 2017.

This spirit of helping each other is something that we believe
would have made our late colleague, Craig Norgate FCA, very
proud. Following his sudden passing in 2015, and with the
permission of his family, we’ve created a scholarship
in his memory, providing financial support
to promising accountants in New
Zealand. This scholarship will help
ensure that his legacy of service to
members and the CA designation
will continue for many years
to come.
This year, we’ve also invested
in CA Kairos™, a suite of nimble
software tools, to help member
practices gain detailed client
insights and streamline business
processes. With the beta trial
of this software now concluded,
we’re excited about the potential
this initiative has to help our
members transform their
businesses for the better.
Within Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand, there’s
a hunger and passion among our
people to deliver a truly innovative
organisation, that focuses on you,
our members. We regard it as
a privilege to be able to help you
prosper, and we look forward to
continuing to serve you in 2017.

MURRAY JACK
BOARD CHAIR
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LEE WHITE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
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PRESIDENT’S REPORT

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The role of President is one that I’ve been honoured to perform
for 2016. It has been a privilege to give members a voice in our
organisation’s strategic and operational matters.

The consolidated financial result for 2016 is a deficit of
$8.178 million, which follows a surplus of $6.194 million in 2015.

This year’s Business Forum is one example of how we’re taking the lead on
innovation. Instead of focusing on technical content as we have in the past,
we presented a stimulating agenda that dealt with issues of business
leadership and life, earning great reviews from those who attended.
While diversity will remain an ongoing focus for our organisation and
the profession, it’s important to remember that we are still more
alike than we are different. Throughout the year, the message I’ve
heard from members around the world is clear: we are proud
of our designation and value being part of a 117,000-strong
professional community.
For many, the CA designation is the anchor for their working lives
– while people may change jobs and even careers, they stay
connected through their qualification. Our alliance with ACCA
extends this connection even further, linking our members
into one of the largest professional bodies in the world.
Through our diversity and our ability to innovate and grow,
I believe that we will not only help redefine the role of
accounting, but will help our individual members prosper
and succeed. With that success, I believe that we can play
an important part in creating more prosperous communities
and lifestyles for us all.

along with the numerous projects and initiatives undertaken

$6.194

improved member services.

this year – positioning our organisation for future growth and

We anticipate a return to surplus in the 2018 financial year.

Revenue

>

$122.16

million

up $14 million on 2015
Members’ subscriptions
and related revenue

$71.479

The increase in total annual revenue reflects a full year’s
revenue stream from New Zealand, compared with the sixmonth period following amalgamation that was included
in last year’s report.
This was offset by the $50 reduction in the annual subscription
fee, which reduced overall fee revenue by $4.5 million.

million

up $14.7 million on 2015
Education & other services

$50.68

million

down from $51.354 million
in 2015

The fall in revenue includes the impact of reduced Chartered
Accountant Program fees in New Zealand to align them
across the organisation.

Expenses

$133.2

million

up 27.3% ($28.6 million)
on 2015
Education

Members

• Delivering
• Building member
the new
services overseas
program
• Delivering the Leadership
developments
in Government Awards
• Content
• Supporting careers
enhancement.
engagement in NZ,
• Supporting Salesforce
hubs and communities
• Developing and testing
CA Kairos™
• Reviewing pathways
and designations.
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financial year, as our investment in these services is completed.

surplus in 2015

future[inc] in Asia
DARREN SCAMMELL
PRESIDENT

We have budgeted for another, smaller deficit in the 2017

million

>

I believe this diversity is a source of great strength, and will help us face the
challenges that lie ahead. As technology, offshoring and automation change
the nature of the services we provide, we need to continue to challenge
perceptions and promote our value as the leaders in business and finance.
By encouraging innovation and diversity of thought – we will be able to find
ways to do things differently, and better.

in the 2016 budget, and reflects a further member fee reduction,

deficit in 2016

>

This has really brought home to me how wide and diverse our membership
base is – with 11,372 members located overseas, and 4,000 living in London
alone. Women now make up more than half of our members under 48
years of age, and this year we celebrated 12 years of supporting the Māori
Accountants Network, Ngā Kaitatua Māori o Aotearoa. We’ve also continued
to work with Indigenous Accountants Australia and the Pacific Island
Chartered Accountants Network, helping support a wider ethnic and cultural
diversity within our organisation.

$8.178

>

I feel honoured to have had the opportunity to see first-hand the valued
contribution our members are making to their communities. I’ve attended new
member, fellowship and milestone events in locations as far afield as Dubai,
London and Asia, as well as closer to home – even in my home town
of Warragul.

The $14 million turnaround from surplus to deficit was anticipated

million

The bulk of the additional expenses were budgeted costs, including
a full year of New Zealand expenses, compared with six months in
2015, as well as costs related to new projects and initiatives across
the organisation, including:
Leadership
& advocacy

Amalgamation

Other projects

• Developing the
new website
(due for rollout
in late 2016)

• Completing
changes to the
subscription
billing process

• Providing ICT support
to the education,
membership and
leadership and
advocacy activities

• Digital marketing • Supporting
and brand
shared services
and customer
• Taking future[inc]
service
forward
• Changing our
professional
conduct
processes
• Sponsoring
World Business
Forum.

• Implementing
new rewards
and recognition
processes.

• Installing a new payroll
system
• Supporting scholarship
and leadership
programmes
• Completing a Work
Health and Safety audit
and improvements
• Initiating the Governance
Review project.
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KEY EVENTS
JULY 2015
Launched Australian
GST model which
showed that an increase
to GST could be fair and
affordable

AUGUST 2015
Academic leadership
series launch: Future
Proofing the Profession

PRE-EMINENCE

OCTOBER 2015
future[inc] launch: Will technology disrupt our
existing and future infrastructure?

acuity magazine: Business Magazine of the Year Award
Maximising the Potential of IP for Your Business:
joint publication with IP Australia and IP Office in NZ

Preserving our designation.
Our training is renowned for its rigour and
quality and for producing individuals known
for their innovative thinking and superior
analytical skills. The code of ethics that our
members adhere to is respected and valued
by business leaders around the world.
See page 10.

NOVEMBER 2015
Committed to New Zealand

Champions for Change

DECEMBER
2015

initiative
Top Australian and New
Zealand public servants
recognised at Leadership

Collaboration
starts with
Microsoft and
Westpac

in Government Awards
in Canberra, hosted by
Sir Bob Geldof

FEBRUARY
2016

OUR
STRATEGIC
PILLARS

to create
CA Kairos™

MARCH 2016

future[inc] launched:
The Future of Work:

Not for profit survey

How can we adapt to
survive and thrive?

Art of Prosperity

launched
launched

RELEVANCE

Keeping ahead in a changing world
We are broadening our range of products
and services to meet ever-changing business
and community needs – and increasing
accessibility for our diverse range of members
around the world. As roles continue to become
more specialised, products and services will
be tailored to facilitate our members’ career
progression. Our members’ commitment to
lifelong learning ensures that their expertise
remains relevant.
See page 22.

MAY 2016
Response to both New Zealand

and Australian Budgets

REACH

Released a Call to Action
for the Australian Federal Election

Extending our influence.

New look Business Forum launched

As a global organisation, we have a strong
voice on issues relating to the profession

JUNE 2016
Strategic alliance
with ACCA
announced
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and business community, and in upholding

JULY 2016
Kuala Lumpur
Council meeting

the public interest.
See page 39.
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THE CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS PROGRAM
We’re continuing to enhance the Program to provide best-practice
education, equipping our graduates to be tomorrow’s business
leaders and problem solvers.
Non-financial indicator

Candidate experience (Net Promoter Score)
10 (up 9 points from 1 in 2015)

CREATING TOMORROW’S CAs

PRE-EMINENCE
PRESERVING OUR
DESIGNATION
Our education is renowned
for its rigour and quality and
for producing individuals
known for their innovative
thinking and superior
analytical skills. The code
of ethics that our members
adhere to is respected and
valued by business leaders
around the world.

In this section
> The Chartered Accountants Program
> future[inc]
> acuity: Business Magazine of the Year

Our profession faces constant change – and the learning
experiences we provide our new members today need to
reflect the reality of tomorrow. As they enter the workforce,
new graduates are expected to perform at a much higher
level than ever before – but what stays the same is the
need to provide critical thinking and value-added solutions
to complex business issues.
To help them prepare, we provide our Provisional Members
with experiences that develop the business acumen they
need to contribute straight away – as well as be ready for
the future.

Pre-eminence Preserving Our Designation

Our CA Program equips new members with a broad
technical and business education, as well as the ethical
foundation that is expected of a Chartered Accountant.
We do this through a mix of education, exposure and
experience, using online and blended delivery, scenario
based teaching, case studies, adaptive simulations, faceto-face collaborations and presentations – supported by
the mentorship of a qualified CA.
We’re continuing our work to bring the best in adult
education and learning infrastructure to our CA Program.
We’ve consolidated the technology we use to deliver
and manage learning, moving towards a more flexible
and convenient online experience, that can be delivered
anywhere in the world.

CA PROGRAM ENROLMENTS
FY 2016

22,087

FY 2015

20,741

Variation

1,346

Variation %

6.5%

> Upholding professional standards
> World Business Forum
> Our brand
> Project profile: The Art of Prosperity
> Member profile: Agnes Chan CA

SUPPORTING EDUCATION
THROUGH BETTER TECHNOLOGY

GLOBAL ACCOUNTING
ALLIANCE (GAA) ACCREDITATION

We strive to produce a world’s best practice educational
experience for our provisional members. In July 2015,
we moved our learning platform to Blackboard Learn,
leveraging its position as a market leader in learning
management systems for higher and professional
education – improving our learner experience.

A key advantage of the CA Program is that it is widely
recognised and accepted by other accounting bodies
around the world. This is demonstrated by this year’s
reaccreditation of the CA Program by the Global
Accounting Alliance (GAA).

At the same time, we introduced 24/7 technology support.
This recognises the fact that, for most of our learners,
study time falls outside business hours.

10

Increase in pipeline 6.5%

This reciprocal arrangement means the CA Program
continues to be recognised by the GAA – giving our
members more options to work overseas and have
their technical skills and learning accepted.

Pre-eminence Preserving Our Designation
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future[inc]
Our thought leadership platform future[inc] is an influential
voice in the debate for developing the prosperity of Australia
and New Zealand.
We’ve continued to lead the conversation on a wide
spectrum of topics relevant to our economic future. Over
the past year, we’ve advanced the discussion on digital
disruption, looking at the impacts of new technologies on
infrastructure – and the changing landscape for our food
producers. We’ve also looked at the level of corruption
in Australia and New Zealand, and its reputational and
economic implications.

More than simply publications, future[inc] includes events
and forums that give our members and stakeholders the
opportunity to be part of these discussions. This year,
we held events in 23 locations around the globe, from
Rockhampton in Australia’s far north and Hawkes Bay in
New Zealand, to Singapore, Kuala Lumpur and Hong Kong.
As part of our work on the future of auditing, we developed
a short animation showing the evolution of this role and the
skills that tomorrow’s auditors will need.

acuity:
BUSINESS MAGAZINE
OF THE YEAR
In 2015, and just 18 months after the first issue, our member
magazine acuity was named 2015 Business Magazine of the
Year at the coveted Publish Awards.
The Awards, which seek to acknowledge the best in print
and digital publishing across Australia, also recognised
acuity as a finalist for Magazine Cover of the Year and
Single Article of the Year.
Over the past 12 months, acuity has featured interviews
with some of the most coveted minds in business, politics,
economics, sport, technology and the arts – including
Barack Obama’s former Chief Tech Officer, Harper
Reed; music legend and humanitarian Bob Geldof; The
Iconic’s CFO Anna Lee CA; technology futurist, Nicholas
Negroponte; advertising guru, Russel Howcroft, and
Australian Prime Minister, Malcolm Turnbull.

The Future of Work: How can we
adapt to survive and thrive?
February 2016

What is the Future for Offshoring?
November 2015

Food Farming and our Future
October 2015

acuity also facilitates ongoing conversation with our
members, using online member groups to generate
ideas, incorporating member content, and showcasing
stories that feature Chartered Accountants making a
difference around the world. We’ve also been improving
the digital experience of acuity – something that will
continue to evolve over 2017 with the launch of our new
digital platform.

PRINT:

104,265
as at March 2016.
Disruptive Technologies: Risks,
Opportunities – can New Zealand
make the most of them?
October 2015

Will Technology Disrupt our
Existing and Future Infrastructure?
September 2015

Are Australia and
New Zealand Corrupt?
September 2015

5,529+ 6,076 3,610
12

downloads

Pre-eminence Preserving Our Designation

8,000
subscribers
to our iPad and
Android apps.

EVENTS
AND
WEBINARS

registered
future[inc] events
and webinars

DIGITAL:

videos played

STOP PRESS:
acuity's June issue cover of Harper Reed (pictured)
has just been awarded Magazine Cover of the Year
at the 2016 Publish Awards.

36,206
unique visitors
to future[inc]
web pages

Pre-eminence Preserving Our Designation
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UPHOLDING
PROFESSIONAL
STANDARDS

BREACHES AND SANCTIONS
Breaches

Total

Failure to observe proper standard/negligence/incompetence

24

Criminal conviction

10

Finding of dishonesty

4

Adverse finding

17

Professional misconduct

1

Each year, we review a selection of member practices to determine
whether they have the appropriate quality controls in place to meet
relevant professional, technical and legislative requirements –
upholding the integrity of our brand.

Entered into an undertaking

6

Effective regulation of members is essential to maintain
the required high ethical and technical standards expected
of Chartered Accountants. When members fail to uphold
these standards, our disciplinary processes ensure that
appropriate action is taken.

Conduct unbecoming

2

Failure to pay sums due to the organisation

1

Condition or restriction on registration or licence

Our 2016 practice reviews revealed that the majority
of reviewed member practices had adequate quality
controls in place. Most re-reviews were a result of
inadequate quality control or insufficient documentation
of audit evidence, or a combination of both.

4

Breach of Charter, By-laws, regulations, rules, standards

32

Failure to comply with organisation's direction/correspondence

22

Insolvency/bankruptcy

13

Conduct bringing discredit/inconsistent with integrity

21

Total

157

Sanctions

PRACTICE REVIEWS RESULTS

445

435

reviews were conducted across
Australia and New Zealand.

DISCIPLINARY
TRIBUNALS
63**

Exclusion/struck off

11

Cancellation/suspension

16

Cancellation of Certificate of Public Practice (CPP)/ineligible to hold CPP

complaints against members

SATISFACTORY 81%

Total

COMPLAINTS
DETERMINED ON APPEAL
9

2016

2

Severe reprimand/reprimand/censure

41

Practice review ordered

13

Training and development/appointment of tutor/required to obtain advice

7

Removal of Fellowship

3

No sanctions except publicity

4

Costs

64

Total

168

*There can be more than one breach/charge laid in an individual case and more than one sanction applied.

RE-REVIEW
REQUIRED IN
12 MONTHS 17%
UNSATISFACTORY 2%
SATISFACTORY 85%

282
COMPLAINTS
CONCLUDED
THROUGH
INVESTIGATIVE
PROCESS (AU)
OR BY THE
PROFESSIONAL
CONDUCT
COMMITTEE
(NZ)

CHANGES TO OUR BY-LAWS

398
COMPLAINTS
OPENED
INVESTIGATED

Following the 2014 independent review of our
professional conduct function in Australia, members
voted to update our By-Laws to enable the
formation of:
• an independent Professional Conduct Oversight
Committee

• a Professional Conduct Committee, responsible for
assessing complaints and other matters, assessing
whether or not a matter should proceed to the
RESULTS
Satisfactory
required Unsatisfactory
in 12 months
Tribunal for hearing,
and enteringRe-review
into consent
agreements with members in appropriate cases.

2015
MATTERS/
COMPLAINTS
WITHDRAWN
25

COMPLAINTS RESOLVED
WITHOUT INVESTIGATION
(NZ ONLY)
37

Complaints against members 2015–16

RECEIVED
AND RESOLVED
TOTAL
RE-REVIEW COMPLAINTS
*In Australia
all complaints
received
against members are opened
asreceived
a complaint whereas in New Zealand435*
some matters are resolved
REQUIRED IN Matters
Complaints
opened/investigated
as vexatious complaints, where
12 MONTHS 13% without a complaint being opened, such398
Complaints
resolved without
(NZ only)
37
the complainant
has investigation
failed to provide
further information,
mediated

UNSATISFACTORY 2%
Matters/complaints
withdrawn about non-members,
25
complaints, complaints
matters withdrawn

Complaints
concluded
through investigative
process
(AU)
before
an investigation
is opened, and
anonymous
complaints.
or by the Professional Conduct Committee (NZ) 282
**5 complaints are subject to appeal and are not included as finalised
Complaints determined by Professional Conduct and Disciplinary Tribunals
complaints.
Complaints determined on appeal
9

14
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The new By-Laws started on 28 July 2016, following
authorisation by the Governor-General of the
Commonwealth of Australia. New Zealand members
continue to be regulated in accordance with the New
Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants Act 1996
and Rules. The new By-Laws will create greater
alignment between the jurisdictions.

63**

Practice reviews
RESULTS
2015 2016
Satisfactory 85% 81%
Re-review required in 12 months 13%
17%
Unsatisfactory 2% 2%

Pre-eminence Preserving Our Designation
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WORLD BUSINESS FORUM
In May 2016, we were a major
sponsor of the World Business
Forum, held in Sydney.

16

Pre-eminence Preserving Our Designation

World Business Forum is a global summit of pre-eminent
political and business leaders and renowned intellectuals,
who present ideas and solutions on the issues and
challenges of the world business environment and global
economy. As such, it was a great opportunity to get
involved and promote the Chartered Accountants brand,
with CEO Lee White FCA participating in the forum’s
discussion panels alongside prominent speakers,
such as Sir Richard Branson.

Pre-eminence Preserving Our Designation
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OUR BRAND

PROJECT PROFILE

Each year we measure the health of our brand to help us
ensure the continuing pre-eminence of the CA designation.
We survey our members, potential members and
members of the business community, to gain a
deeper understanding of the power and perceptions
of our brand. We then use the results to create
recommendations to strengthen the brand in the
year ahead.

2016 BRAND HEALTH INDEX
In the year to May 2016, our Brand Health Index has
shown a substantial 12.2 point increase in overall
brand health. This has come from strong gains in
brand preference and unprompted awareness
in future members and the business community.
Emotive attachment to the brand (power in the mind)
fell slightly from 66% to 64%, while word of mouth
advocacy (Net Promoter Score) rose from 4% to 12%.

THE ART OF PROSPERITY

HIGHLIGHTING THE CONTRIBUTION
OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

In March 2016, we launched The Art of Prosperity, a brand
campaign created to highlight the contribution of Chartered
Accountants.
The campaign centres on the art that Chartered Accountants
bring to helping their clients and their businesses build
prosperity, in turn contributing to our communities and
economies – enhancing
prosperity for us all.
The campaign reached
an audience of more than
23 million through three

YouTube videos alone.
Additional advertising was
secured across key business
publications and radio
stations in New Zealand
and Australia.

The ‘Art’ reflects the unique skills
Chartered Accountants bring to
the table as a
result of their
continuing
education, ethical
code, principled
judgement and
business insight.

KEY NUMBERS

23

million
views of The Art of Prosperity
YouTube clip (AS AT JUNE 30)

15%

uplift in brand health*
* 2016 Brand Health Index

THE RESULT
The Art of Prosperity campaign supports the preeminence of Chartered Accountants designation as the
leaders in business and finance. By bringing this message
to a broad and far-reaching audience, it had a strong
and direct impact on our brand health, with key
indicators growing significantly in the weeks following
the campaign launch.

Facebook

1,033
new likes per month,
up 13.5% on 2015
18
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‘Prosperity’ means different things to different people.
For some it equates to financial success. For others it’s
access to education, health care, and an equitable society.
"No matter what the definition, Chartered Accountants
contribute to the prosperity of local communities by
working with local businesses. This in turn leads to more
prosperous nations and a better future for us all."
– Rob Ward AM, Head of Leadership & Advocacy

YouTube MyCareer
Pathway subscribers

31 new likes per month,
up 16.5% on 2015
Pre-eminence Preserving Our Designation

19

MEMBER PROFILE

AGNES
CHAN CA
MACAU,
HONG KONG
As Managing Partner of EY for
Hong Kong and Macau, it’s hardly
surprising that Agnes Chan has
a busy schedule.

Agnes has been providing tax
and business advisory services for
more than three decades, and has
been named one of the leading tax
advisers in Hong Kong by the ‘Guide
to the World’s Leading Tax Advisers’,
every year since 2006. Still she says
that when it comes to getting things
done, it doesn’t pay to work alone.

“Every day is a juggling act.
Even if you have your whole day
planned out, something will
pop up that means you’ll need
to change your well planned
schedule – so you’ll need
to be flexible.”

“What I’ve learnt over 30 years in this
profession is that proper delegation
to a high performing team is your
most important tool. Without it,
you will not be able to get your
work done.”

"My mother used to take
me to the markets and I
used to love racing with the
shopkeepers to calculate
the change."

With a strong family history in
accounting, she says her choice
of career was apparent from an
early age.
“I loved arithmetic even as a child.
My mother used to take me to the
markets and I used to love racing
with the shopkeepers to calculate
the change. I became very good at it,
so I thought to myself, this is the way
to go for me when I grow up.”

“I still remember when I went through the CA Program many years back.
This is a very honourable qualification. The designation is highly regarded in
the international community and the Program really equipped me with the
ability to analyse and interpret financial and non-financial data, and to build
an understanding of the dynamic issues for international organisations in
the global market.“

20
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BUILDING OUR
MEMBERSHIP
Our membership is what makes us strong. So we work
hard to attract the brightest talent for the future.
Non-financial indicator

Net membership growth 3.9% (target 7.5%)

117,000 members
NEW PATHWAYS TO MEMBERSHIP

RELEVANCE
KEEPING AHEAD IN
A CHANGING WORLD
We are broadening our range
of products and services to
meet ever-changing business
and community needs – and
increasing accessibility for
members around the world.
As roles continue to become
more specialised, products
and services will be tailored to
facilitate our members’ career
progression. Our members’
commitment to lifelong learning
ensures that their expertise
remains relevant.

22

Relevance Keeping Ahead In a Changing World

in this section
> Building our membership
> Member achievements
> Enhancing lifelong learning

We’re focused on growing our membership, building
strategies based on our core pillars of pre-eminence,
relevance and reach. We’re making our designations
stronger and more consistent, and creating new flexible
pathways with an international strategy that supports
our global brand.
We are engaging with members and other stakeholders
about the existing Accounting Technician (AT) and
Associate Chartered Accountant (ACA) designations.
Currently only offered in New Zealand, we’re determining
how to best position these designations for relevance and
value into the future.
We’re also looking at how we can enhance education
products to drive greater relevance and differentiation
for our members and businesses. This is particularly
important given the technological changes that are
reshaping both accounting and business.

> Mapping the member experience
> Building our global presence
> Serving our members
> Supporting diversity
> Giving
> Project profile: CA Kairos™
> Member profile: Natalie Lennon CA

Relevance Keeping Ahead In a Changing World
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CAREERS MARKETING AND ENGAGEMENT
We are active in schools, universities and other
educational institutions, promoting Chartered Accounting
as a career to aspire to. We do this through direct contact
with students, teachers and lecturers, and through our
network of Student Brand Representatives.

3,000+
university students

attended Employment
Evenings

1,339

meetings and events
with employers

600

high school
engagements

100

universities and other
institutions engaged

We also sponsor events and publications to reach
potential future CAs, and engage with future employers
to help make sure our graduates will have the right skills
to equip them for the future.

2,200
high school students
attended Meet the
Business Leader

1,054

presentations to
lecturers, academics,
teachers and career
advisors

381

on-campus events

71

student societies
engaged

298

high school and
tertiary awards and
scholarships granted

178

student brand
representatives
engaged

8
sponsorships of

events and publications
that reach potential
future CAs

MEMBER ACHIEVEMENTS
We congratulate all our members who celebrated significant
achievements throughout the year.
MEMBER MILESTONES
LIFETIME
ACHIEVEMENTS

2,696

2,034

154

90

10 years

50 years

20 years

60 years

FELLOWSHIP

58 New fellows
1,073
514
30 years

40 years

6

4

70 years

75 years

LEADERSHIP IN
GOVERNMENT AWARDS
This year, for the first time, we celebrated the contribution
of public service leaders on both sides of the Tasman,
through our Leadership in Government Awards. The
awards, hosted this year by Sir Bob Geldof, give these
individuals a financial contribution of up to $20,000 to
pursue leadership development, or bring best practice
training to their workplace.
2015 Leadership in Government Awards
• Outstanding Contribution Award (Australia):
Tracey Sheather – Department of Human Services
• Outstanding Contribution Award (New Zealand):
Lyn Provost FCA – Audit New Zealand
• Highly Commended:
Elizabeth Ward – Department of Foreign Affairs
and Trade (DFAT)
• Highly Commended: John Fisher – DFAT
• Graduate of the Year:
Laura Johns – The Australian Government Solicitors

PM NZ John Key and young accountants
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ENHANCING
LIFELONG LEARNING

MAPPING THE
MEMBER EXPERIENCE

We have continued to expand and enhance our technical education
offering, to include a broad range of content in business leadership
and management. We’re using leading edge education practices
and learning technologies to deliver highly reputable and relevant
business content – helping our members stay ahead of the game.

Serving our members means understanding what it is
you really value – then delivering that in everything we do.

Non-financial Indicators

Engagement hours 164,263 hours (target 120,000 hours)

BUSINESS FORUM 2016: CONNECT
WITH THE BEST AND BRIGHTEST
Business Forum is our premier education event in
leadership, innovation and excellence for business and
finance professionals.
This year, we moved beyond a traditional focus on technical
education, delivering a tailored learning experience for
members and the wider business community, with a
strong focus on strategic leadership. Participants had
the opportunity to hear from – and connect with – worldshapers, industry leaders and entrepreneurs. Dr Tal BenShahar delivered the opening keynote, speaking engagingly
on the psychology of leadership and the importance of
connected intelligence.

content – anytime, anywhere. Through our business
education portfolio, members now engage in a
wider range of business and leadership content –
complementing our traditional technical training,
and delivering on our aspiration to be the first place
our members go for all their learning needs.
To support this, we’ve identified and partnered with
leading education providers around the world, to provide
discounted access to the latest in business content –
something we’ll continue to expand in the coming years.

OUR NEW PUBLIC
PRACTICE PROGRAMME

Non-financial indicators

Brand preference
& recognition
73% (up from 67%
in April 2015)

As a member organisation, we understand that we exist
only for our members. So it’s essential that we understand
how you feel about us, and what you value about your
membership.
Our Member Experience (MX) project has set out to do
just that – engaging an external research group to survey
members, listen in on calls to our contact centre and
conduct workshops with members.

MX Project Challenge
How might we truly understand our
members’ needs so that we organise
ourselves to deliver a relevant, seamless
and simple service that our members love?

Member Engagement
Power In The Mind:
64% (down from 65%
in April 2015)

Net Promoter Score
12% (up from 4%
in April 2015)

The research yielded some important insights on what
matters to our members, which have been mapped into
a set of actionable Member Experience Guidelines. At the
core of everything sits an overarching need to be relevant
– providing members with options that make sense and
are relevant to their career and interests.

APPLYING THE GUIDELINES
We’ve already rolled out these Guidelines to teams across
the business and are applying them in our projects and
process reviews.
Having a formal member experience framework in place
when developing new products and services helps us
ensure we can deliver what you need – and create a
consistently great member experience.

This coming year, we will also introduce the new
Chartered Accountants ANZ Public Practice Programme.
Over the course of the Forum, participants engaged with
Designed to empower new practitioners in today’s
thoughts and ideas from Dr Harold Hillman and Gordon
changing business world, it provides practical business
Cairns on authentic leadership, David Thodey on design
management skills and a solid grounding in the
mindset, Bernard Salt on strategic acumen, and many more.
regulatory framework required for managing a
successful practice.

CREATING A NEW LEARNING
EXPERIENCE AND OPPORTUNITIES

To stay ahead in their profession, our members must adapt
and evolve. To help them do this, our education programme
has evolved too.
Our Education Store is now live, giving members a single
point of access to leading business education

The programme showcases the future of learning with
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand,
delivering a blended learning experience across a series
of eLearning modules and face-to-face symposiums,
incorporating leading edge educational design
principles and learning technologies.

SYDNEY BUSINESS FORUM 2016
Held over two days at Hilton Sydney on 23 and 24 May 2016.
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BUILDING OUR
GLOBAL PRESENCE

SERVING OUR
MEMBERS

Last year, we opened offices in the UK, Singapore, Hong Kong,
and Kuala Lumpur, extending our ability to support and grow
our global membership. This year, the focus has been on building
our presence in these regions.
We’ve deepened our engagement with our international
regions through a series of networking events and
future[inc] roadshows. As well as providing the chance
for members to build relationships in their regions, these
events have been an effective way to reach out to senior
leaders in the broader business community.
We’ve also strengthened our international relationships,

EXTENDING OUR
MEMBER NETWORKS

by partnering with professional bodies and groups on
initiatives that reflect our own goals. For example, we’ve
recently supported events for the Hong Kong Women’s
Foundation, Community Business (Hong Kong) and the
Australian and New Zealand Chambers of Commerce.
These partnerships help us promote our members and
give us a stronger brand presence around the world.

Key locations

Supporting international members extends beyond
simply opening offices. In 2017, we’ll be working to
provide greater support to members via a network
of linked members in key locations around the world.
Initially, we’re targeting locations with large numbers
of members, but which don’t have close access to a
Chartered Accountants office.

•

SAN FRANCISCO

• DUBAI

• BEIJING
• SHANGHAI

• BANGKOK

OUR WORKFORCE
This year, we’ve grown our workforce to respond to initiatives in the business,
and to help deliver what’s important to you. We’ve continued to recruit top
talent, ensuring that we have the skills and capability to deliver for our members.
We’ve continued to build and support a culture that puts our members first, and
which values diversity of experience and ideas. We’ve done this through a series
of internal events and workshops held across the organisation.

number of
507 employees

297 in Australia

6 other locations

us for 5 years
27.02% orwithmore
(137 people)

99,119
Calls

ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTIONS

12% OF OUR MEMBERS WORK OVERSEAS,
WITH APPROXIMATELY 4.5% IN THE UK AND ALMOST 3.3% IN ASIA.
ADVOCATING FOR
UK SKILLED MIGRANTS

THE UNITED NATIONS
GLOBAL COMPACT

We’ve been actively engaged in the discussion around
immigration in the UK – specifically in relation to skilled
migrants. Recent commitments by the UK to reduce
net migration is likely to affect Australians and New
Zealanders looking to gain experience working overseas.

We’re a signatory to the United Nations Global Compact,
the world’s largest corporate sustainability initiative,
with over 12,000 participating businesses and other
organisations.
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Staff turnover
15.75% (target 15%)

204 in NZ

Our customer contact centre responded to:

• TORONTO
• NEW YORK

DID YOU KNOW? AROUND
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Staff engagement measure
8% improvement (target 2% improvement)

Customer contact centre

We’ve already appointed volunteer ambassadors to help
us roll out networking events and to provide a voice for
members in these regions, with the programme set
to launch in late 2016.

We’ve met with a number of key committees discussing
this change, as well as the Australian and New Zealand
High Commissioners in London, to advocate on our
members’ behalf.

Non-financial indicators

The UN Global Compact works with business to help
create a sustainable and inclusive global economy
that delivers lasting benefits to all people, communities
and markets.
As part of this commitment, we must operate in alignment
with the UN Global Compact’s ten principles, which cover
issues including bribery and corruption, human rights and
the environment.

One of the most visible processes for members is the
annual subscription process. This year, we made it easier
to renew your membership by enabling a new single
identity model that lets you log in and renew completely
online. This process, along with streamlined processes
through our shared services centre, saw calls for help
with subscriptions fall significantly.
The single identity model also makes it possible for
members to manage their profile themselves – resetting
passwords and updating details and preferences without
having to come through our contact centre. We’ve had
more than 80,000 members use the system, enabling
them to take better advantage of our digital services
and online education in coming years.

OUR DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION

72,018
Emails

INFRASTRUCTURE
AND TECHNOLOGY
We’re still retiring legacy systems from before the
amalgamation and are now creating a technology
platform to take us into the future. This year, we’ve
completed our system refresh and migration, with all
end user computing on a single platform, regardless
of location. We have a single payroll system across the
whole organisation, a new identity management system,
a unified workflow system and video conferencing,
to create efficiency in our day-to-day workings.
We successfully delivered this year’s registrations
and payments for Business Forum with our new event
management software, Cvent. We’ve also finished
rolling out our new learning management system,
Blackboard, bringing all our education programmes
onto a single platform.

Our digital transformation is underway, merging three
legacy websites into a united online presence – and
preparing us for an increasingly online future.
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AFFINITY MEMBERS’
PROGRAMME
Introduced in 2015, the Affinity Members'
Programme provides strong strategic
partnerships on both sides of the Tasman,
delivering a comprehensive range of quality
products and services to our members –
with benefits not always available to the
general public.
Affinity also provides value through leadership insights from our high-calibre
partners. This year, we’ve extended the programme to provide a greater range
of lifestyle benefits, meeting our members’ professional and personal needs.

SUPPORTING DIVERSITY
Our future depends on harnessing the different
viewpoints that a diverse membership brings.
Diversity has been a key theme driving our organisation
in 2016. Our future[inc] publication, Fast Forward:
Leading in a Brave New World of Diversity highlighted
the importance of diversity as a condition of success in
an increasingly global environment. And we’ve been
taking our message to our members, with successful
events and forums on the subject of diversity, held in
a number of locations around the world.
We acknowledge that diversity brings richness to our
business and enhances the quality of our service to our
members. So we’re also challenging ourselves to put
diversity into practice, with a focus on achieving greater
diversity within our organisation.

BUILDING A DIVERSE
MEMBERSHIP

OUR PARTNERS

We have continued to build our relationships with
Indigenous Accountants Australia, Ngā Kaitātau Māori
o Aotearoa, and the Pacific Island Chartered Accountant
Network, with the aim of increasing the representation
of Māori, Pacific Island and Indigenous Australians within
the profession.

In Australia, we work with the CareerTracker Internship
Programme, to provide internship opportunities for
Indigenous Australians. We are part of a Global Women/
Diverse NZ working party to bring this programme to
New Zealand to provide internship opportunities for
future Māori, Pacific Island and Asian leaders.
We are continuing to sponsor the diversity category of
the Australian and the New Zealand Women of Influence
awards, as the only Trans-Tasman sponsor. We also
participate in Champions for Change, a group of New
Zealand Chief Executives and Chairs who are committed
to raising the value of diversity and inclusion within their
organisations. In Australia, CEO Lee White FCA is an
active participant in the Australian Male Champions
of Change programme.
Our member networks are communities of Chartered
Accountants who have a common interest and come
together for regular meetings and networking. We
encourage a wide range of members to attend these
groups to develop their cultural intelligence and to
learn more about people from different backgrounds.
We currently have member networks specifically for
women, Māori , Pacific Islander, Asian, young and
retired members.

We
Shop
Smart

Inaugural Craig Norgate scholarships announced
Last year, we lost our valued
colleague, Craig Norgate FCA,
someone who made a significant
contribution to Chartered Accounting
in New Zealand throughout his career.
This year, with the support of his
family, we’re launching two new
annual scholarships in Craig’s
memory. The first, the New Zealand
Memorial Scholarship, is open to CA Program
students from across New Zealand.
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The second is for students in the
Taranaki region, an area where Craig
and his family invested so much time,
energy and love.
Each scholarship will provide financial
support over a two-year period,
helping students complete the CA
Program. The scholarships and
application process will be launched
later this year, with the first recipients
to be announced in January 2017.

Relevance
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UNDERSTANDING
THE GENDER PAY GAP

INDIGENOUS ACCOUNTANTS
AUSTRALIA (IAA)

We sponsor the annual Remuneration Survey in New
Zealand, which is the leading source of remuneration
trends in the accounting profession.

We’ve continued to work with IAA to help increase and
encourage participation by Indigenous Australians in
accounting. This joint initiative with CPA Australia aims
to increase the number of indigenous participants in
every aspect of the accounting profession.

The 2015 survey saw over 6,500 New Zealand members
taking part, a response rate of 29%. The results revealed
that the gender pay gap has widened since 2010, even
after factors such as work experience and career breaks
were removed. The gender pay gap appears to emerge
within five years of post-entry experience, widens after
eight years, and peaks for those with more than 21 years’
experience.
In 2017, we are planning to extend the survey to our
Australian members, providing us with a Trans-Tasman
view of the industry. We will continue to provide education
and advocacy on the gender pay gap within the
profession and across industries.

This year, we’ve had five new qualified accountants
enter the profession, with 20 studying towards their
professional qualification.
Through the IAA, we were a platinum sponsor of
the inaugural Indigenous Accounting and Business
Conference, where Relationship Managers and Project
Directors presented to delegates from Australia and
around the world, providing fresh insights on some key
issues and themes.
Over the year, we also had three new Indigenous
Relationship Managers join the initiative. They have
already made their mark – with valuable indigenous
student and employer networking events run around
the country.

NGĀ KAITATU O MĀORI
O AOTEAROA (NKMOA)
During the year, our relationship with Ngā Kaitatau
o Māori o Aotearoa (The National Māori Accountants
Network) strengthened, building on a Memorandum
of Understanding to actively encourage more Māori to
choose accounting as a career and explore opportunities
to work together.
A key agreement has been to appoint a Māori Sector
Manager for Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand in 2016 to engage with NKMOA, iwi, hapu,
whanau and other key stakeholders.
At NKMOA’s 2015 national hui, the two winners of the
NKMOA-Chartered Accountants ANZ scholarships were
announced. The scholarships assist young Māori students
to excel in accounting and contribute to the successful
economic development of the Māori community.
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GIVING

BUILDING A DIVERSE WORKPLACE
We are committed to an inclusive workplace culture that celebrates diversity,
provides equal employment opportunities, and empowers all of our people to
realise their individual and collective potential. Such a culture encourages a
variety of viewpoints that enhance problem-solving, continual improvement
and innovation – and increases our adaptability and agility.

After 10 years in Australia, our Everybody Counts workplace giving
programme launched in New Zealand, giving our employees on both
sides of the Tasman the chance to give back.

To underpin this commitment, we are implementing updated policies on
diversity and inclusiveness, and preventing discrimination, harassment and
bullying within our workplace. We also encourage workplace participation in
groups such as our Women’s Development Circle.

OUR WORKFORCE DIVERSITY
GENDER DIVERSITY

70%

WHO WE SUPPORT

AGE DIVERSITY

AUSTRALIA

65+ YEARS 1%
60 – 64 YEARS 5%

WOMEN MAKE UP:

Whole
organisation

The programme was refreshed and relaunched in both countries in November
2015, with an updated group of charity partners, based on the results of a
survey to find the causes our employees were most passionate about.

NEW ZEALAND

Board

36%

Strategic
Business
Total at
Leadership Leadership leadership
Team
Team
level

25% 36% 34%

50 – 59
YEARS
17%

20 – 29
YEARS
19%

OUR CONTRIBUTION

$120,000

$400,000+ 8.6%
since 2006

of employees volunteering

$55,150

$25,000

$14,614

$6,039

$246

in 2016 financial year
0 – 49
YEARS
24%

30 – 39
YEARS
34%

in employee fundraising
and donations

in skilled and unskilled
volunteering

in dollar matching

in-kind donations,
including use of facilities
and access to financial
and business education

the average value
contributed by each
participating employee

RECOGNISING 30 YEARS OF SERVICE

CAs attending the Young Professional Women Australia International Women’s Day event

ASIALINK & NEW ZEALAND ASIAN LEADERS
In 2015, we partnered with Asialink – Australia’s leading centre for building Asian
capability, public understanding of Asia, and appreciation of Australia’s role in the
Asian region.
Through this partnership we can expose our members to emerging issues within
the Asian region. Many Asialink educational offerings have been incorporated into
our Lifelong Learning programme, such as Cultural Intelligence and Working in
Culturally Diverse Teams.
We have also recently formed a partnership with New Zealand Asian Leaders,
whose mission is to promote, educate and foster established and aspiring New
Zealand Asian leaders, to play an active role in the future of New Zealand and
promote cultural understanding in New Zealand’s diverse communities.
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In 1986, Pamela Lee applied for a role as Assistant NSW
State Registrar at the Institute of Chartered Accountants
(ICAA). She says that, at the time,
she didn’t meet every requirement
of the position – but the State
Registrar at the time, Peter
Waters, immediately recognised
her potential. His instincts were
right, and Pamela quickly earned a
reputation for being a tireless and
passionate advocate for members.

Accountants Australia and New Zealand. In her current
role of Community Investment Relationship Manager,
Pamela has taken her service
ethic to a new level, heading up
the Everybody Counts workplace
giving programme as well as
the organisation’s charitable
foundations.

In 2016, Pamela marked 30 years working for Chartered
Accountants, first with the ICAA and then Chartered

be awarded a Fellowship. It’s a great honour and I was
absolutely blown away.”

Pamela’s 30th anniversary was
celebrated in style, with a staff
morning tea and cocktail party,
“I believe some people are born
and a personalised book outlining
Left to right are Stephen Harrison AO FCA,
to serve. In my early years with
the highlights of her career. But it
John Stewart FCA, Pamela Lee and Stuart
the organisation, I was ingrained
was the presentation of an honorary
Black AM FCA.
with a strong member ethic. I’ve
fellowship, presented by CEO Lee
never forgotten that our members are the most important
White FCA and Head of Members, Simon Grant FCA,
stakeholders of this organisation – they are the reason
that she is most proud of.
that we’re here.”
“After 30 years of serving our members, I was thrilled to
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PROJECT PROFILE

ENABLING
MEMBERS WITH
THE TOOLS
OF TOMORROW
With many traditional accounting businesses
under threat from increased automation,
we wanted to find a solution to help our
members face the future with confidence.
In 2016, we launched a project to help
accounting businesses become more
efficient – while using insights from data
to get to know their clients better.
Named CA Kairos™, the project is a collaboration between Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand, Microsoft and Westpac to bring
the benefits and opportunities of cloud-based analytics and machine
learning within the reach of all our members.

HOW IT WORKS
CA Kairos™ delivers a suite of online practice management solutions – from
tools and dashboards that help you integrate your systems and cut manual
processing, to a sophisticated data analytics service.
The Predictive
Accountant

The Connected
Practice

Accelerator/
Incubator Hub

Gain deeper insights
into your clients
and business with
sophisticated analytics
based on internal and
external data.

Create efficiency
though our suite of
integrated online
tools – linking email
and document
management systems
to your accounting
system.

Enjoy ongoing
access to the latest
technology solutions
and support, through
our dedicated
innovation and
technology hub.

KAIROS =
Ancient Greek
word that means
‘the opportune
moment’.

30

practices in which a beta version
of CA Kairos™ is being trialled

30,000
estimated need for data managers
in Australia and New Zealand
by 2018

"CA Kairos™ is a significant
and vital step in equipping
businesses — particularly small
to medium businesses — with
the skills and tools to access
big data in a meaningful way.
Using insights from data,
practices can gain deeper
insights about their clients,
helping them make better
business decisions, while
harnessing new efficiencies
through greater automation."

NATALIE
LENNON CA
SYDNEY,
AUSTRALIA

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,
LEE WHITE FCA

THE RESULTS
To help make sure we’re creating solutions that address your needs, we’ve
involved members in the project at every stage. After an initial test in nine
member practices, a beta version of CA Kairos™ is being trialled in 30 practices
in Australia and New Zealand – with an enthusiastic response to date.
Rollout of the live version is scheduled for October 2016 – making the potential
benefits of CA Kairos™ available across our entire member base.
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MEMBER PROFILE

As a Chartered Accountant and partner in a
public practice firm (BML Partners), Natalie
Lennon CA is focused on helping her clients
achieve prosperity. But her work with a charity
helping women in Uganda has provided a new
perspective on what prosperity really means.
Natalie Lennon CA was drawn to a career as a Chartered Accountant
by the diverse and varied opportunities it offers.
“I believe the accounting profession is one of the most diverse and
ever-evolving professions. As Chartered Accountants we are taught
through our studies to look at the
bigger picture and to analyse the
“I have seen first-hand that
detail in such a way that allows
informed and calculated strategic

social prosperity can be

measured by happiness,
and not based solely on our
possessions or money but by
focusing on what you have...”

business decisions.”
Working as a partner in an
accounting and business advisory
firm, Natalie is well aware of
her role in helping her clients
create and maintain prosperity,
providing valued advice that
helps them overcome the
obstacles to growth.

But recently, Natalie has found a broader application for these skills, through
her involvement with the Love Mercy Foundation, an Australian rights based
community development organisation in Uganda. Their “Cents for Seeds”
programme is an agricultural micro-loan programme empowering women
to care for their families and change their communities, with a participation
goal of 20,000 women by 2020.
“My husband and I are ambassadors for the foundation and we visited
Uganda last year to see the difference they are making, and to help facilitate
the annual fun run that draws over a thousand people each year. This
inspiredme to be more involved and I currently sit on the Board, where
I believe the skills I have learnt as a CA assist in making informed decisions
to create and drive financial and non-financial strategies for the foundation.”

REACH
EXTENDING
OUR INFLUENCE
As a global organisation,

In this section:

we have a strong voice

> ACCA alliance

on issues relating to the

> Global relationships

profession and business

> Submissions & engagement

community, and in
upholding the public

> Leadership & advocacy
> Project profile: Mentor Exchange
> Member profile: Saimon Lomaloma CA

interest.

She says that the experience has changed the way she views personal
prosperity and what we value most in life.
“I once would have said personal prosperity is achieved through being
successful in my career and earning a good salary, enabling me to buy
a house and have nice things.”
“I have seen first-hand that social prosperity can be measured by happiness,
and not based solely on our possessions or money but by focusing on what
you have – which will enable you to see the world in
a different light.”
“The people of Uganda may be poor in wealth but are some of the richest
in life and happiness that I have witnessed.”
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ACCA ALLIANCE
In June 2016, we announced a strategic alliance
with one of the world’s largest and most influential
accounting bodies, the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA).
This is one of the most significant developments in our organisation since we were
formed by the amalgamation of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia
and the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants in January 2015.

The ACCA is a London based body, with truly global reach.

represented
by the alliance

Providing leadership in the field
14% (target 20%)

Representing members’ interests to
media and government 75.2 (target 100)

BENEFITS OF
THE ALLIANCE

ADVOCACY SNAPSHOT
Topic

PRE-EMINENCE
members

students

countries

GLOBAL RELATIONSHIPS
We are an actively engaged and respected participant member of:
• International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
• Chartered Accountants Worldwide (CAW)

Non-financial indicators

Our goal is not only to be heard, but to actively effect change in our
communities – and help shape a more prosperous future for us all.

ABOUT THE ACCA

• Global Accounting Alliance (GAA)

This year we’ve advanced our position on issues that are relevant
to our membership and to the prosperity of our countries.

Part of our role is to provide a voice for our profession and business. We do this
by speaking out on the issues that matter, in our future[inc] thought leadership
publications and forums, in the media, in government meetings, and in formal
policy submissions.

We are conducting extensive consultation to shape the alliance, creating exciting
opportunities for our members. Members should anticipate greater collaboration
between our two bodies, access to a wider international pool of educational
opportunities and the sharing of resources and office space around the world.

788,000
308,000
480,000
181

LEADERSHIP
& ADVOCACY

As part of one of the world’s largest
professional bodies, we can benefit
from greater recognition and a
bigger voice on the global stage.

• Auditing Competency Standard for Registered Company Auditors (RCA) – Australia.
Contributed to the revision of the standard to provide an alternative to meeting the
hours of experience requirements for registration with ASIC as an RCA.

Audit

• Professional Scepticism e-learning Programme. Developed a pragmatic, scenariofocused course that provides innovative ways for auditors to grow their skills by
challenging their approach to scepticism.
• Key Audit Matters guide – released December 2015. Developed a guide providing
practical assistance for smaller firm practitioners on how to identify and write key audit
matters and work with their clients. Work is continuing, including with the AICD and IoD,
to make directors aware of the changes.

RELEVANCE
Through increased membership
strength and enhanced networks,
we will become even more efficient
in delivering services to you.

REACH

Activity

• GST modelling: Released GST modelling which showed that an increase in GST
can be fair and affordable.

Australian
taxation

Our members will enjoy information
services, education and commercial
opportunities from around the world,
including access to offices in 95
countries.

• Base Erosion Profit Shifting (BEPS): Participated in a Public Sector Symposium.
• Board of Taxation: Participated as a member of the advisory panel.
• ATO consultations: Participated as a key stakeholder in both public and
confidential consultations.
• Other meetings: Met with politicians and their advisors from all political parties.

• future[inc]: Released six papers on corruption, farming, offshoring, infrastructure,
disruptive technologies and the future of work.

Business issues

• Business briefing papers: Released updated trans-Tasman briefings on Intellectual
Property and Treasury.
• Economic updates: Released updates at the start of 2016 for Australia and New
Zealand, providing an opportunity to co-brand with member firms.
• Business Forum: Held future[inc] sessions on diversity and 21st century regulator.
• ASIC capability review and funding model: Participated in consultation.
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Financial
advisory
services

• Australia: Continued consultation with the Australian Government and industry
stakeholders on the proposed amendments to the legislation for lifting the professional,
ethical and education standards in the financial services industry.
• Australia: Worked with ASIC to transition members into the new licensing framework
for when the accountants’ exemption was removed on 30 June 2016. Developed further
guidance to Australian members including resources such as FAQs, DIY kits, publications,
webinar recordings and workshops.
• New Zealand: Contributed to the Government’s consultation of the Financial Adviser Act
2008 review, including on the role of Chartered Accountants.

SUBMISSIONS & ENGAGEMENT
Through direct engagement with government,
we are helping to shape the legislative landscape.
We’re active in sharing our expertise with policymakers and politicians, to help ensure
the views of our profession are well represented. In 2016, we made 155 submissions to
government across a range of topics, and participated in 291 key government meetings
and industry roundtables.
We convened or sponsored five major events alongside key political leaders, with our
CEO or policy leaders facilitating live Q&A or panel discussions.

Government
affairs

• Released our Call To Action for the next term of the Australian Federal Government:
Outlined our election year policy recommendations on innovation, tax reform and
sustainable retirement incomes.

Policy submissions
2015-16

• Taxation of closely held companies: Provided key input into reform.

New Zealand
taxation

155

• BEPS and transparency: Provided ongoing engagement with Government
on its initiatives.
• Property tax sales: Provided a detailed response to new rules.

total

Professional
ethics and
liability capping

• future[inc] Future of Financial Reporting Survey: Launched survey to help us identify
members’ views on the special purpose/general purpose debate and other important
reporting matters. We have been keeping these issues in the spotlight not only through
our advocacy work, but also in social media pieces such as our blogs.
• New financial reporting framework (New Zealand): Worked with government bodies
and member groups to monitor the implementation of the new framework and provide
education and advocacy recommendations.

Superannuation

291

• Professional Standards Act 2005: Advocated for changes to section 27(c) that are
currently being drafted by the Tasmanian government. Amending this section will result
in Chartered Accountants ANZ applying for a liability capping scheme for Tasmanian
members.

• Financial reporting reform (Australia): Championed the need for reform through our
representation on the Financial Reporting Council and in discussions with Treasury,
ASIC, the AASB and the AUASB.

Reporting

Key government meetings
& industry roundtables

• Australian professional conduct programme: Ran a successful member vote for
by-law changes.

total

KEY EVENTS
JULY 2015

Committee
for Economic
Development of
Australia (CEDA)
State of the State
NSW Premier’s
Keynote Address

AUGUST 2015

Tax Reform
Forum, Sydney

Co-convened event
with former Treasurer
Joe Hockey, with
CEO Lee White FCA

SEPTEMBER
2015
CEDA –
superannuation
forum

FEBRAURY
2016
Trans-Tasman
Business Circle
Sponsored event

Sponsored event, with

and hosted a table of

Shadow Treasurer

politicians and policy-

Chris Bowen as keynote

makers, with CEO Lee

speaker.

White FCA seated with

• Australian superannuation system: Proposed a new objective – to create a national
culture of saving and self-sufficiency in retirement.

Sponsored and released

• Australian Federal Budget changes: Reviewed and commented on the proposed
changes which had a significant impact on the 2016 Federal Election.

Budget Infographic.

the Australian and

CEO Lee White FCA

• Australian Tax Office: Was a key stakeholder, participating in both public and
confidential consultations.

New Zealand Prime

sat at the head table

Ministers.

our FY15 NSW State

facilitating the Q&A.

with the NSW Premier
and also took part in
the Q&A.

For more information see Advocacy Priorities and Leadership & Advocacy Policy positioning documents, available on our website.
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WORKING
TOGETHER

PROJECT PROFILE

MENTOR EXCHANGE

HELPING MEMBERS PROSPER

Mentor Exchange was launched in 2015 to provide a way
for members to help each other develop and grow. Matching
early-career members with more experienced peers, it provides
a structured approach to sharing experience and achieving
specific career goals.

6

months
working together

10

locations in Australia,
New Zealand and UK

206
mentor
pairs

ALEXIA
PAPADAKIS CA AND
CHRIS CATES CA
(MENTOR), LONDON

412
participants

1,200+
expressions of interest

A: Chris had a different start to her career from
me, and this offered a perspective which I haven’t
really had before. She is focused on her career
and at a stage where she knows what she wants,
while still growing herself. That made me feel really
comfortable with her – not like she felt like she was
at the top of the food chain as mentor.

HOW IT WORKS

THE RESULTS

Mentor Exchange aims to create successful, mutually
beneficial relationships by matching and introducing
compatible members, who meet at least four times
over a period of six months.

The response was overwhelmingly positive – exceeding
expectations both in terms of participation and in the
benefits reported by members.

Starting with introductory workshops, members are
walked through the mentoring process, and set goals
for the coming months. Mentors and mentees receive

We have now launched the 2016 intake introducing
a more streamlined application system, with a 40%
increase in participants. We’ve also extended the
programme into Asia.

additional support throughout the programme, from
regular articles and emails and the Mentor Exchange
Guide, to phone check-ins and a mentor for the mentor.

We will continue to adapt Mentor Exchange to deliver
it to more members, in more places around the world,
and at different stages of their careers.
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Chris helped me determine what was important
and focused me on making that happen. I’m now
in a role which I love in a great company, whose
products I understand and enjoy. – Alexia

C: Initially, I was a bit nervous that I was matched
with a mentee with a practice and corporate
background. I thought maybe she needed something
from me which I didn't have experience in. Luckily,
that wasn't the case, and we clicked straight away.
Like a lot of professional women, Alexia doesn't
know how good she is yet. Once I saw her CV I
realised she had a very impressive background
and experience and was a very attractive candidate
for the UK market.
For me, the programme was a great opportunity to
work on my mentoring style – which is an important
skill to have. It also feels good to help someone if you
can – seeing them progress is very enjoyable. – Chris

Reach Extending Our Influence
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JEREMY HARPER CA
AND TIM BOYCE CA
(MENTOR),
MELBOURNE
J: Tim and I are both on the same page with our
work and life values. We were able to establish
a good relationship early on and it meant we
were able have those ‘real’ conversations early
in the programme. For me and my business,
that was critical, as I was able reach out to Tim
when things were going great, and also when I
was struggling.
I could not recommend this programme enough.
Provided you are prepared to listen and take on
board the feedback from the mentor, you will
see a great deal of personal development, both
professionally and as an individual. – Jeremy

T: Having been a CA for 25 years, I haven’t
really ‘given back’ too much. So when the
opportunity presented itself to do so in a way
that I thought matched some of my abilities,
I figured it was the right time.
Early on, our interactions were a bit formal,
but as we talked more and knew each other
better, they became pretty robust. I think our
interactions gave Jeremy permission to let
down any guards, and just be himself, openly
and honestly. My job is to help navigate
through the issues and difficulties and help
Jeremy on a path to solutions.
I have easily benefited as much out of this
experience as I have given. – Tim

JAMES TARRANT CA
AND
MATTHEW GEASON CA
(MENTOR),
SYDNEY
J: It became clear to me very quickly that despite
having quite different career paths, Matt was
someone I could learn a lot from. Matt helped give
me a better perspective of where I actually am in
my career path, what opportunities there were still
to be realised in my current role, and what I would
probably learn from the next one.

M: Across 30-plus years, I have seen the positive
difference that strong leadership and people
management skills make to individual careers,
and to the results that teams deliver. I have also
benefited personally from having great mentors,
and realised that my own experience is now broad
enough to provide similar benefits to others.

Successful people always use their networks to learn
and progress, and no one is ever in a situation that
someone else hasn’t experienced before.

It was great to realise that the mentoring process
provides value in both directions. James's
alternative perspective made me re-think several
past experiences, such that I may approach things
differently if similar situations ever arise again.

The CA network has a huge wealth of experience
and knowledge within its membership base, and this
programme gives up and coming CAs direct access
to it. – James
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For the CA community, mentoring can only
strengthen the collective insight and overall
approach that we offer to our client base. There
is no substitute for experience, but the mentoring
process is as close as it gets. – Matt

Reach Extending Our Influence
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MEMBER PROFILE

SAIMON LOMALOMA CA
QUEENSTOWN,
NEW ZEALAND
Flyboards, hoverboards and motorised surfboards?
Just another day at the office for Saimon Lomaloma CA.
Saimon Lomaloma CA has always been drawn to the outdoors. Growing
up in Island Bay, a south coast suburb of Wellington, swimming, diving and
boats were a way of life. So it was perhaps inevitable that after a few years
working in the corporate world, he would decide to leave it behind – and start
a business that sees him spending up to 50 hours a week on one of the most
beautiful lakes in the world.
“I thought that I needed that
corporate life, the career thing but I
knew I wanted to be outside, travel,
with the rush of sport. I wanted to be
out enjoying life.”

“My CA background played

The Chartered Accountant set up
an extreme water sports business,
delivering adrenaline-fuelled
experiences on Queenstown’s Lake
Wakatipu to adventure-seeking
tourists.

the business, becoming

a huge role, especially
with regard to franchising

incorporated and raising
finance.”

“It was a lifestyle choice. I wanted to have a little bit more flexibility and enjoy
what I was doing. I came from a corporate background working for an oil and
gas company and now have the freedom to do what I really love.”
But Saimon says that it was his accounting background that gave him the
confidence to take the leap – and the acumen to expand the business to Fiji,
with more locations on the horizon.
“I knew accounting would give me a solid background to anything I wanted to
do,” he says, “and it has been very valuable in helping me create my business.”
“My CA background played a huge role, especially with regard to franchising
the business, becoming incorporated and raising finance.”
“The role of accountancy is moving from bookkeeping and compliance to being
business influencers – they have always done that, but it’s becoming much
more so. Accountants make key decisions in business, and their soft skills are
becoming much more important, such as networking and people skills.”
It’s those skills that Saimon believes gives Chartered Accountants the ability
to pursue whatever it is they want out of life.
“My recommendation would probably be to just sit down and think what is it
you really want to be doing – regardless of money or expectations – and if you
are happy doing something, work hard for that.”
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OUR BOARD
Board Directors and Office Bearers
CHAIR

“2016 has been a year of
consolidation and growth,
delivering more value to

Current role Professional Director
Qualifications FCA, BCA
Member since 1980
Year appointed 2014
Term ends 2019
MEETING ATTENDANCE

members across the Tasman
and around the world.”

10

10

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
BOARD

GOVERNANCE

MURRAY JACK FCA
Murray has over 30 years’ experience in management consultancy, working
in the United Kingdom, New Zealand, Australia and throughout Asia.
He has been an adviser to ministers and chief executives around the
world. He has particular strengths in helping organisations establish good
corporate governance and advising on business transformation.

In this section

Murray is also Chair of the Board of the Financial Markets Authority and
a director of The New Zealand Initiative.

> Our Board

Murray served NZICA in the role of Director from July 2009 prior to his
appointment to the Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
Board from December 2014.

> Our Governance Structure

9

9

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
NOMINATIONS & GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

4

4

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

PRESIDENT
“What I’ve enjoyed most about
my time as President is meeting
members across the globe,
from 70-year milestones to

Current role Partner, KPMG 		
Financial Services, Audit
Qualifications FCA, BEcon
Member since 1989
Year appointed 2014
Term ends 2016

the recently qualified. I can see
that our membership in the

MEETING ATTENDANCE

past, present and future has
an incredibly high quality of

10

10

professionalism”
ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
BOARD*

DARREN SCAMMELL FCA Darren’s experience as an auditor and
accountant specialising in the financial services industry spans over 30
years and across two countries; Australia and the UK.
Based in Melbourne, and having spent over two years in Adelaide,
Darren's international experience comes from spending five years in
London in the early 90s and from 2006 to 2008, all with KPMG.
Darren served ICAA in the role of Director from October 2012 prior to his
appointment as Vice President of Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand from December 2014.
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9

7

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
NOMINATIONS & GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE
* 1 July – 31 December 2015 observer only.
1 January – 30 June 2016 Director.
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DIRECTORS
Current role
Global Chief Risk Officer, PwC

MICHAEL BLAKE FCA
Mike has more than 38 years’
experience in the audit and accounting
professions, in both public and
private sectors.

Current role Directorships
& standard setting
Qualifications FCA, BCom
Member since 1991
Year appointed 2014
Term ends 2018

He worked for four years as a finance
director in the public health sector, and
has been active in standard setting,
as a member of the former Public
Sector Accounting Standards Board,
the UIG and the AUASB. He is currently
a member of the AASB and of the
IPSASB.
In March 2016, Mike retired as AuditorGeneral of Tasmania after more than
11 years in that role.
Mike served ICAA in the role of
Director from January 2011 prior

to his appointment to the Chartered
Accountants Australia and New
Zealand Board from December 2014.
Mike was reappointed to the Board
to December 2018.

Qualifications FCA, BEcon
and Social Studies (Hons)
Member since 1997
Year appointed 2014

MEETING ATTENDANCE

10

10

MARY WALDRON FCA

Institute of Company Directors, and
was a Director of The MacFarlane
Burnet Institute for Medical Research
& Public Health, and Opera Australia.

Mary has almost 30 years’ experience
in audit assurance and advisory
services with PwC, EY and Arthur
Andersen. She is a member of Chief
Executive Women and the Australian

Mary served ICAA in the role of
Director from January 2013 and
was appointed to the Chartered
Accountants Australia and New
Zealand Board from December 2014.

8

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
BOARD

7

MEETING ATTENDANCE

Term ends Resigned
30 June 2016

7

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE

6

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
BOARD

4

3

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

ANDREA WATERS FCA
MICHAEL FORDE FCA
Michael has over 20 years’
experience in investment banking,
capital markets, professional services,
treasury and risk, in Australia, the UK
and New Zealand.

Current role Senior Advisor,
Aquasia Pty Ltd | Director,
Karearea Corporate Advisory
Qualifications FCA,
BArts Dip Accounting
Member since 1997
Year appointed 2014
Term ends 2017

He is currently working as a senior
advisor with Aquasia, a small
independent corporate finance
house, after 10 years in investment
banking, where he specialised in
corporate finance, capital markets
and funding advisory.
Before that, Michael was with AMP,
where he was their Group Treasurer,
and PwC in both audit and financial
risk advisory.

Andrea is a professional nonexecutive director. Her portfolio
includes Citywide Service Solutions
Pty Ltd, CareSuper, Bennelong Funds
Management Group, The Lord Mayors
Charitable Foundation and AJW
Advisory Services Pty Ltd.

Michael served ICAA in the role of
Director from January 2012 and
was appointed to the Chartered
Accountants Australia and New
Zealand Board from December 2014.
MEETING ATTENDANCE

10

10

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
BOARD

Current role Professional
Non-Executive Director
Qualifications FCA, BCom
Member since 1987
Year appointed 2014

4

4

Term ends 2016

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

She has 28 years' experience as
an auditor with KPMG - including 16
years as a partner, specialising in
financial services.
Andrea served ICAA in the role of
Director from January 2009 and
was appointed to the Chartered
Accountants Australia and New
Zealand Board from December 2014.

JOHN PALERMO FCA
John has 20 years’ experience in
public practice. Based in Perth, his
areas of expertise are in corporate
transaction execution, strategic
business management and business
structuring.

NEIL PAVIOUR-SMITH FCA

Current role Managing
Director, Forsyth Barr Ltd
Qualifications FCA, BCA
Member since 1991
Year appointed 2014
Term ends 2017
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Neil Paviour-Smith has over 25
years’ experience in various roles
in New Zealand capital markets.

In 2005, Neil was an inaugural
recipient of a Sir Peter Blake Trust
Leadership Award.

Neil is a director of New Zealand
Exchange Limited (NZX), ProChancellor of Victoria University of
Wellington, as well as an Authorised
Financial Advisor, NZX Advisor,
chartered member of the Institute
of Directors, member of Governance
NZ and the CFA Institute. He is also
an accredited Master Stockbroker
of the Stockbrokers Association
of Australia.

Neil served NZICA in the role of
Director from July 2009 prior to
his appointment to the Chartered
Accountants Australia and New
Zealand Board from December 2014.
MEETING ATTENDANCE

10

10

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
BOARD

Current role Director, Palermo
Chartered Accountants
Qualifications FCA, BBus –
Accounting & Finance
Member since 1999

John was formerly Chair of the
Chartered Accountants ANZ Public
Practice Advisory Committee and the
Western Australia Regional Council.
He is a Board Member of Lifeline,
Royal Perth Hospital Research and
Councillor of the National Trust of
Western Australia. His experience

MEETING ATTENDANCE

10

10

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
BOARD

7

7

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE

also extends into Asia, having
represented CAANZ in Singapore
and Malaysia.
John was appointed to the
Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand Board in October
2015 to fill a casual vacancy.
MEETING ATTENDANCE

8

8

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
BOARD

Year appointed 2015
Term ends 2017
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VICE PRESIDENTS

FRED HUTCHINGS FCA
With a solid background in
government and private enterprises,
Fred brought over 30 years’
experience to Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand to his role
as President, including a wide range
of assurance, business advisory and
commercial experience.

Fred was President of NZICA
throughout the consultation and vote
to create Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand. He was
appointed as President of Chartered
Accountants Australia and New
Zealand from December 2014.

KEVIN MURPHY FCA
Kevin has been the Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer of TSB
Bank since 2010. He has more than
20 years’ experience at a senior
executive level within TSB Bank,
contributing as Finance Manager
then Deputy CEO, before taking
on his current role.

MEETING ATTENDANCE

A partner with PwC and its preceding
Current role
Professional Director
Qualifications FCA, BBS
Member since 1978
Year appointed 2014
Term ended 31 December 2015

firms for 28 years, Fred specialised
in providing audit advisory services
and transaction support with a
focus on infrastructure companies
in telecommunications, energy and
electricity transmission sectors.

5

5

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
BOARD

Current role Managing
Director/CEO, TSB Bank Ltd

He now holds a number of
governance roles for organisations
around New Zealand.

9

Qualifications FCA
7

Member since 1989
Year appointed 2015

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
NOMINATIONS & GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Term ends 2016

BOARD DIRECTORS (INDEPENDENT NON-MEMBER)

marketing. Louise currently holds
non-executive directorships with
Macquarie Media Limited, Australian
Physiotherapy Association, Grant
Thornton Australia Limited,
Current role Professional
Non-Executive Director

and Credit Union Australia, and is a
Chair for the CEO Institute Australia.
Louise was appointed as an
Independent Non-Member Director of
Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand Board in January 2015.

MEETING ATTENDANCE

10

9

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
BOARD*
*Observer only.

9

9

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
NOMINATIONS & GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Current role
Internal Audit, Suncorp
Qualifications FCA,
MAICD, BEc(Acct)
Member since 1996
Year appointed 2016
Term ends 2017

Qualifying as a Chartered
Accountant while working in
Financial Services Assurance and
Advisory at PwC, she then spent
10 years with Macquarie Group,
before moving to her current role
internal audit at Suncorp Group
Limited.
Jane has been a facilitator and
marker for the ICAA’s Chartered
Accountants Program and has
lectured in accounting at a postgraduate level.

MEETING ATTENDANCE

5

5

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
BOARD*

5

5

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
NOMINATIONS & GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE
*Observer only.

Current role Professional Director

Year appointed 2014

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
BOARD*

Jane has more than 15 years of
professional accounting, auditing,
finance and risk management
experience.

University of Notre Dame Australia,

Term ends 2017

Qualifications ONZM,
BArts, AMP (Harvard)

10

10

JANE STANTON FCA

Qualifications Masters
Management, FAICD, FAIM, FRSA
Year appointed 2015

Kevin represents the bank on a
number of governance bodies and
is currently a Board member for
Venture Taranaki.

MEETING ATTENDANCE

*Observer only.

LOUISE MCCANN
Louise has a background in media,
commercial market research and

Kevin provides leadership, as well as
strategic and operational direction to
the Bank. Recently he spearheaded
the Bank’s review of its leadership
structure and strategic direction to
position the organisation for growth
within a competitive industry.

Kevin served NZICA in the role of Vice
President from January 2014 prior to
his appointment to Vice President of
Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand from January 2015.

MEETING ATTENDANCE

Term ends Resigned 30 June 2016
10

Zealand and Eden Park trust, and
Director of Genesis Energy, Ryman
Healthcare, and IAG New Zealand.

DOUG MCKAY
Doug is an experienced Director
based in New Zealand and is
currently Chair of Bank of New
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Doug served as Director of NZICA
from July 2009 prior to his
appointment as an Independent NonMember Director to the Chartered
Accountants Australia and New
Zealand Board from December 2014.

9

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
BOARD

7

7

ELIGIBLE
ATTENDED
AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE
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NOMINATIONS & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Members

ABOUT THE BOARD

Eligible

Attended

Andrew Arkell FCA (Chair)

9

9

Mel Ashton (Retired 31 December 2015)

4

3

Fred Hutchings FCA

9

7

Murray Jack FCA

9

9

Susie Johnstone FCA

9

8

Kevin Murphy FCA

9

9

Darren Scammell FCA

9

7

Jane Stanton FCA

5

5

Eligible

Attended

Hugh Rennie (Chair)

6

6

Kevin Murphy FCA – Independent (Ex-Officio, Vice President)

6

6

Neil Paviour-Smith FCA

6

5

Doug McKay FCA (Retired 30 June 2016)

6

6

Our Board and its committees provide leadership
to ensure we set and achieve our strategic objectives
and operate effectively and efficiently. The Board
Charter details its functions, responsibilities, powers
and procedures.
The Board has at least eight formal meetings each year.
One of these is a strategic planning meeting with the
Strategic Leadership Team (SLT). The CEO attends all
Board meetings but the Board regularly holds Boardonly sessions.

The Board is made up of the President and nine
Directors – including two non-member Directors.
Recommendations for Board appointments are made
to the Council by the Nominations and Governance
Committee for consideration and approval.

BOARD SKILLS AND DIVERSITY
The Nominations & Governance Committee regularly
reviews the structure and composition of the board to
ensure that directors have diverse and complementary
skills, perspectives and experience.

NEW ZEALAND REGULATORY BOARD
Members

DIRECTOR SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE
Skills matrix
Technical skills/experience

Board

Audit & Risk
Committee

Executive
Remuneration
Committee

Nomination
& Governance
Committee

10

3

3

4

OUR GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand was
a member of the Australian Stock Exchange Corporate
Governance Council that developed the Corporate
Governance Principles and Recommendations 3rd Edition
in 2014. We have adopted this framework to apply to our
own governance, as far as it is relevant to us.
The framework provides guidance for effective decision
making in all areas of:

Finance & business acumen

10

3

3

4

Corporate governance

4

2

1

2

Strategy

8

3

2

2

• risk management and compliance

Risk management

8

3

3

4

• financial management and external reporting

Strategy development and implementation

7

2

2

2

Stakeholder management

7

1

3

3

Mergers and acquisitions

6

2

2

2

International experience

3

0

2

2

Legal /regulatory

4

2

1

2

Marketing

4

1

2

0

Information technology

3

0

2

1

Communication

4

0

2

1

Audit committee

8

3

2

2

Senior management

7

1

3

4

ASX100 / large corporate

4

2

1

1

Public sector / not-for-profit

7

1

2

2

Board Chair

6

1

2

2

Large accounting firm

5

1

3

3

SME

4

1

1

0

Small accounting firm / practitioner

2

0

0

0

• strategic and operational planning

• succession planning and culture.

The framework forms part of own corporate governance,
through systems of control and accountability outlined in
our Supplemental Royal Charter, By-laws, NZ Rules
and Board Governance Manual, including the Code
of Conduct.
As an Australian Registered Body (ABN 50 084 642 571),
operating in a co-regulatory environment, we are also
required to comply with Australian Accounting Standards
(including Australian Accounting Interpretations) and
other mandatory professional reporting requirements
with respect to our financial reporting. We also comply
with appropriate elements of the Corporations Act 2001
(Cth) and other relevant legislation in Australia and
New Zealand.
Our full Corporate Governance Statement can be found
on our website.

Industry/role experience
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OUR FRAMEWORK

EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

OVERSIGHT RESPONSIBILITY FOR

RESPONSIBLE FOR DAY TO DAY

FINANCIAL AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS

OPERATIONS, DEVELOPING

OVERSIGHT FROM THE BOARD,

REPORTING, RISK MANAGEMENT

STRATEGY AND IMPLEMENTING

PERSPECTIVE OF MATTERS

SYSTEMS, INTERNAL CONTROL

BOARD POLICIES

RELATING TO THE REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE

SYSTEMS, COMPLIANCE, INTERNAL

COSTS, CEO PERFORMANCE AND

AND EXTERNAL AUDIT

REMUNERATION POLICY AND
DELEGATION

ASSURANCE,

ACCOUNTABILITY

DELEGATION

OVERSIGHT

STRATEGY
ASSURANCE,

DELEGATION

OVERSIGHT

THROUGH

THROUGH

REPORTING

REPORTING

NZ REGULATORY BOARD
RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING NZ
BASED REGULATORY FUNCTIONS
ARE CARRIED OUT UNDER THE
NZICA ACT 1996 IN REGARDS TO
NZ BASED CA ANZ MEMBERS

THE BOARD
•
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
•
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
•
RESPONSIBILITY FOR STRATEGY
AND PERFORMANCE, WITH
OVERSIGHT OF POLICY AND
OPERATIONAL ISSUES

PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT
OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE
PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT
PROCESS AS IT APPLIES TO
AUSTRALIAN AND INTERNATIONAL
NON-NEW ZEALAND MEMBERS

APPROVES AND OVERSEES
ACADEMIC POLICIES RELATING

BOARD AND THE MEMBERS
• PROVIDES INPUT TO THE BOARD
ON THE STRATEGIC DIRECTION
• APPOINTS, EVALUATES

LEARN MORE
Our Corporate Governance Statement provides
detailed information about our governance
framework and practises. To view a copy, go to
our website.

OUR COUNCIL
Fred Hutchings FCA – 2015 President – retired 31 December 2015
Darren Scammell FCA – 2015 Vice President AU, 2016 President – appointed 1 January 2016
Kevin Murphy FCA – Vice President NZ
Jane Stanton FCA – Vice President AU – appointed 1 January 2016
Dato’ Richard Abas FCA (Asia) – appointed 1 January 2016

Hugh McKenzie FCA (Tas)
Jannine Mountford CA (NZ)
Baubre Murray FCA (NZ)

• ACTS AS A LINK BETWEEN THE

PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

Details of Board delegations are included in the
Delegations Register, which is maintained by the
Governance Manager. The delegations are reviewed
and approved by the Board annually.

The reviewers found the Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand governance system to be sound.
The ideas recommended were by way of refining and
strengthening the system. Final recommendations were
considered by the Board in October. The results of the
review will be incorporated on the Governance Review
page of our website.

Cassandra Crowley CA (NZ)

COUNCIL

AND MEMBER ISSUES

To do this, we engaged board consultants CameronRalph
to conduct an independent consultative review of our
governance framework. The approach taken for the review
was to maintain open dialogue with members on the
various committees as the thinking progressed. Members
were encouraged to provide feedback via questions on
our website or by email directly to the reviewers. Online
webinar-style forums were also used.

Suranie Alwis FCA (UK/RoW) – retired 31 December 2015

ADMISSION REQUIREMENTS

• INDEPENDENT LEGAL OR

In accordance with By-Law 133A, the Board has
delegated to the CEO (and through the CEO, to the SLT),
responsibility for the day-to-day management of the
organisation’s business and implementation of Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s strategy and
policy initiatives.

OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTING
TO NORMAL MEMBERSHIP

• INTERNAL AUDITORS

When we formed Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand in 2015, we committed to completing an
independent governance review within two years, to ensure
we had the right model to help us serve our members now
and in the future.

TO THE GRADUATE DIPLOMA
AND RECOMMENDS CHANGES

• EXTERNAL AUDITORS

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

OVERSIGHT OF THE

EDUCATION BOARD

INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE

GOVERNANCE REVIEW 2016

PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD

NOMINATIONS
AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Peter O’Regan FCA (Qld)
Andrew Robinson FCA (UK/RoW) – appointed 1 January 2016
David Robjent FCA (ACT)

MONITORS AND OVERSEES

Peter Rupp FCA (WA)

GOVERNANCE PROCESSES

Dione Schick FCA (Asia) – retired 31 December 2015

INCLUDING NOMINATION

David Thompson FCA (Vic)

AND SUCCESSION

• APPROVES AWARDS TO MEMBERS

John van Ruth FCA (SA)
Stephen Walker FCA (NZ)
Heather Watson FCA (NSW) – appointed 1 January 2016

LOCAL
LEADERSHIP
TEAMS

SEGMENT ADVISORY
COMMITTEES

REGIONAL
COUNCILS

REPRESENTATIVE ROLE, PROVIDE

8 REGIONS

OVERSEAS
MEMBERSHIP
COMMITTEES

PROVIDE INPUT ON

ADVICE TO MANAGEMENT AND COUNCIL

REPRESENTATIVE ROLE,

REPRESENTATIVE ROLE,

Associate Professor Julie Walker CA (Chair)

Professor Anne Lillis CA (Retired 31 March 2016)

LOCAL MEMBER

ON MEMBER ISSUES BY SEGMENT,

PROVIDE ADVICE TO

PROVIDE ADVICE TO

Rosemary Chung FCA

Gordon Mackenzie FCA

SEGMENTS, NEEDS

AND ASSIST THE DEVELOPMENT OF

BOARD ON STRATEGIC

BOARD ON STRATEGIC

AND PREFERENCES

INITIATIVES AND RESOURCES TO

POLICY AND MEMBER

POLICY AND MEMBER

Owen Gibson FCA

John Murray FCA

SUPPORT AND ENGAGE WITH MEMBERS

ISSUES

ISSUES

Dr Julie Harrison CA

Frank Newman FCA

Professor Howard Davey FCA

Hayley Underwood CA

Professor Fawzi Laswad FCA (Chair, Retired 30 November 2015)

Professor Graeme Wines CA

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ANZ EDUCATION BOARD

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND MEMBERS
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REGIONAL COUNCILS

SEGMENT ADVISORY
COMMITTEES

Australia

John Medlin CA

Timothy Holden FCA

ACT

Stephen Noble FCA
(Chair to 31 December 2015,
Ex-Officio)

Duncan Honore-Morris FCA

Anna Nolan FCA

Paul Meissner FCA

Joanne Doyle FCA

Nathan Reichstein CA

Matthew Pringle FCA

Simon Graetz FCA

David Thompson FCA

Peter Guise CA

WA

Anthony Hoffman FCA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Prof Glennda Scully FCA (Chair)

Timothy Holden FCA

Con Abbott FCA

Ron Louis FCA

Matthew Allen FCA

Stephen Lucy CA

Amanda Cox FCA

Paul Meissner FCA

Doug Craig FCA

Baubre Murray FCA

Evelyn Hogg CA

Michael Prasad CA

Peter O’Regan FCA

Tinashe Kamangira CA

Susan Rix FCA

Ron Louis FCA

Susan Rix FCA
(Retired 1 January 2016)

(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Peter Rupp FCA
(Chair to 31 December 2015)

Lorraine Watt FCA (Chair)
Courtney Dennett CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
Ian Goodwin CA
(Appointed October 2015)

Stacey Quinn CA

Julia Langdon FCA
(Chair to 31 December 2015)

Amy Fox CA
Professor Kerry Jacobs FCA
(Chair, Retired September 2015)

QLD

Cameron Lynch CA

Troy Popham FCA (Vice-Chair)

David Robjent FCA
Robert Andrew Sykes FCA
Adam Stennett CA
Michael Talevich FCA
(Deputy Chair, Retired
31 December 2015)
Rahul Verma CA

Kaylene Gaffney FCA (Chair)
Ian Congram FCA
(Appointed 1 Jan 2016,
Resigned 1 June 2016)
Charles Kerr FCA (Retired
31 December 2015)

NSW

Glenn Russell FCA

Cameron Johnstone FCA
(Chair 2016 from March 2016)

Chris Ryan CA

Heather Watson FCA (2015 Chair)
Kate Boorer CA (Vice Chair 2016)
(Appointed 9 July 2015)

Kate Swindon FCA
(Chair, Retired 31 December 2015)
John Thynne FCA
Richard Wanstall FCA

NZ
Kevin Murphy FCA
NZ Vice President
Mike Atkinson CA
Matt Bolton CA

Public Practice Advisory Committee
David Armstrong FCA (Chair)
Mark Bain CA

Ben Jordan CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

ANZ Regional & Rural
Advisory Committee

Shane Simmons FCA
(Appointed 1 November 2015)

Marilyn Davies FCA (Chair)
George Collier CA

Charities & Not-for-Profit
Advisory Committee
Bill Edge FCA (Chair)
Stuart Burns FCA
Kevin Clarke CA
Carolyn Cordery FCA
Louise Edwards FCA
Anita Furnell CA

Craig Owen CA

David Ross CA

Daniel Papallo CA

Phillippa Wilson CA

Greg Sheehan CA

Andrea Petersen FCA

Robert Nelson CA

Amanda Watt CA

Fran Raymond FCA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Robert Cox CA

Corporate Segment
Advisory Committee

John Stubley CA
Mark Twomey CA

Prof Peter Wells FCA

David Nelan FCA (Chair)

Timothy Kirby CA
(Appointed January 2016)

Paul Breen FCA (Vice-Chair)

Richard Dey FCA

Tony Candy CA

Jonathan Forrest FCA (Chair)

Ben Coull FCA
(Chair to 31 December 2015)

Grant Ellis FCA

Mark Conelly FCA

Peter Catterson FCA

Murray Harrington FCA

Murray Dickinson CA

Maria Cavallo CA

Rebecca DenElzen CA
(Appointed 1 February 2016)

Lucy Hickman CA

Peter Dikranis CA

Bob King AT (Fellow)
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Simon Jones CA

Simon Croft FCA
(Retired 1 January 2016)

Tim Loan FCA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

David Paynter CA

Jane Stanton FCA
(Retired 31 December 2015)
SA/NT
John van Ruth FCA (Chair)
Nigel Stevenson FCA (Vice-Chair)
Bruce Debenham FCA
Matthew King CA
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Leanne Milligan FCA
Rob Perkins CA (FCA - ICAEW)

James Louw CA
(Appointed April 2016)

Paul McElwee CA

Daniel McCarthy FCA

Michael Prasad CA

Julia Sloman FCA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Hugh McKenzie FCA

Aaron Snodgrass CA

Lincoln Tong CA

Anita Robertson C

Michael Stowers CA

Vic

Sam Tangitau CA
(Appointed 28 August 2015)

John van Ruth FCA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Taryn Rulton FCA (Chair)

Baubre Murray FCA

Charles McNeill FCA (Vice-Chair)

Murray Taylor FCA
(Resigned 2015)

Bill Edge FCA

Phillippa Wilson CA

Frazer Weir CA

Michael Rondel FCA

Paul Barnicoat FCA

Paul Gidley FCA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Fiona Stockdill CA

Darren Mitchell CA (Chair)

Dale Ching CA

Lyndal Kimpton CA

Stephen Stafford-Bush FCA

Darren Laarhoven CA

Ross Tilly FCA

Jane Meade FCA
(2015 Vice Chair; 2016 Chair only
Jan-Feb; Retired February 2016)

Cros Spooner CA

Kerry Hicks FCA

Australia Regional &
Rural Advisory Committee

Leah Eyre CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Charles Rau CA

NZ Public Sector
Consultation Committee

Nives Botica-Redmayne FCA

William Yan
(Appointed March 2016)

Richard Perry FCA

David Gilchrist FCA

Tas

Andrew Robertson CA
(Appointed January 2016)

Hamish McDonald CA

Craig Fisher FCA

Carole Campbell FCA
(Retired 29 February 2016)

Wendy Patterson FCA

Trudi Ballantyne FCA

William Ooi FCA (Chair)

Ron Pearson CA
Julie-Anne Morrison CA
Fergus Welsh CA
Jo Devine CA
.

Bruce Debenham FCA
Damian Mulherin FCA
Peter O'Regan FCA
Chris Kol FCA
(Appointed 1 August 2015)
Josh Fletcher CA
(Appointed 1 March 2016)
Kay Plummer FCA
(Appointed 1 March 2016)
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OVERSEAS
MEMBERSHIP
COMMITTEES

LOCAL
LEADERSHIP
TEAMS (NZ)

Chartered Accountants
ANZ Hong Kong

Chartered Accountants
ANZ Malaysia

Auckland region
Auckland

Mark Scott CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Bay of Plenty

Wairarapa

Joelene Ranby CA (Chair)

Thomas Westgarth CA (Chair)

Christine Tsang FCA (Chair)

Dato’ Heng Ji Keng FCA (Chair)

Andrée Atkinson CA (Chair)

Gladys Lim FCA

Samuel Cheng FCA (Treasurer)

Dr Wilson Tay FCA

David Bassett CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Karen Brock CA (Chair)
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Fiona Cameron AT

Portia Tang FCA (Secretary)

Fiona Stockdill CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
Sarah Walker CA

Michael Chan FCA

Ng Sue Ean CA (Treasurer)
(Retired 31 August 2015)

Swathy Gudipoodi CA

Jason Lougher CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Nikki Hosking CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Quintan Moore ACA

Tan Yoon Huat CA

John Larner CA

David Osborne CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Lillian Lam CA

Yap Ai Di CA

Lie Ming Or (Secretary)
(Resigned 30 September 2015)

Ashley Chew CA
(Retired 31 August 2015)

Michael Leightley CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Michael Pang FCA

Daniel Wong Chan Wai CA

Ingrid Wong FCA (Continuing
Professional Education (CPE)
Co-ordinator)

Shafiq Abdul Jabbar FCA

Mason Wu FCA

Dato’ Gabriel Choong CA
(Appointed 1 September 2015)

Travis Huggins CA
(Appointed 1 October 2015)

Chartered Accountants
ANZ Singapore
Dione Schick CA (Chair)
(Appointed 30 November 2015)
Martin Aitchison CA
(Retired 29 November 2015)
Samantha Chan (Secretary)
(Resigned 1 February 2016)
Andrew Er FCA (Treasurer)
David Leow FCA
Charles Macgregor FCA
(Retired 29 November 2015)

Leonard Woo Chi Leong FCA
(Appointed 1 July 2015)

Chartered Accountants ANZ UK
Tracey Lee FACA (Chair)
Chris Hamilton CA (Vice Chair
and Networking Team Leader)
Paul McKechnie CA (Vice Chair)
Suranie Alwis FCA – CA ANZ
Rest of World Councillor
(Retired 31 December 2015)
Jessica Dixon CA
(Social Team Leader)
Craig Jenner ACA (Treasurer)

Don Northey FCA
(Chair to 30 November 2015)

Tim Kerr FCA (Chair)
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Will Tipping CA
(Appointed 30 November 2015)

Daniel Leckey CA

Anand Sachdev CA
(Appointed 30 November 2015)
Leong Siew Theng FCA
Cynthia Soh CA
(Appointed 30 November 2015)
Matthew Waters CA

Stanley Koo CA

Paul Walker CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
Gisborne/East Coast
Robyn Tomlinson CA (Chair)

Melanie Rowe AT
Kathrine Way CA

Felicity Tate CA

Bruce Rankine CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Catherine Chrisp CA
Joanna Frain CA

Sarah Riches CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Kylee Rich CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Michelle Hall CA

Kiran Watkins ACA

Whanganui

Philip McLeod CA

Paul Wollaston CA

Avasha Singh CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Sharyn Pearce CA (Chair)

Cathy Moorcroft CA

Aimee Wevers CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)
Mark Winter CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)
Northland
Stephen Ganley CA (Chair)
Karen Bell CA
Jeffrey Burson CA
John Dykzeul CA
Angela Edwards CA
Anne Lensink CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
Eddie Roberts CA
Arturo Robiso CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Barry Vryenhoek ACA

Wellington region

Hamish White CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Judith Pinny CA (Chair)

Wellington
Hamish Bowen CA

Taranaki
Wesley Gillanders CA (Chair)
Servaas Botha CA
Louise Corlett CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)
Marilyn Davies FCA
Paul Duynhoven CA
Denise Karageorge CA
(Resigned 3 February 2016)
Annemarie Karaka CA
(Appointed 25 May 2016)
Amy Lewis AT
Liz Maddox-Strong CA
(Appointed 25 May 2016)

Jacqueline d’Ath CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
Saimon Lomaloma CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
Mel Main CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Glenn Spooner CA
Cameron Town CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
Bronwyn Wilson CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Nick Dalgety CA (Chair)

Sally Newcombe CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
Kate Silvester CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
Adrian Sparrow ACA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Waikato

Vicky Richter CA (Chair)

Jayson Poulton CA
(Retired 30 March 2016)

Craig Riddiford CA (Chair)

Ray Hancox CA (Chair)

Sharlene Bryant CA (Chair)
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Aileen Davey CA

Bronwyn Dinniss CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Suzie Clifford CA

Grant Eddy CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Jason Driscole FCA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Alastair Cromie CA

Matt Laing CA

Brian Holmes CA

Gill Easton ACA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Rory Noorland CA
(Resigned 4 May 2016)

David Moir CA
(Chair to 31 December 2015)

Bill Gilmour CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Sarah Riches CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Billie Stanley CA

Lisa Hardie ACA

Julian So CA

Manawatu

Sarah Woolerton CA

Matthew Power CA

Jane Mitson CA
(Chair to 31 December 2015)

Rest of North Island (RONI)
region Hawke's Bay

Alice Thame CA

Gaylene Jones CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

South Island Region
Marlborough/Nelson

Dean Locke CA
(Appointed 26 May 2016)

Chris Sole FCA

Brent Hood CA

Philip Major CA

Tim Wilson ACA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Stuart Scoular FCA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
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Nicky Old CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Vanessa Lennie CA
(Professional Development
Team Leader)

Andrew Robinson FCA –
CA ANZ Rest of World Councillor
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
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Linda Nouwens CA

Sue Eagle AT

Brett Allan ACA
(Retired 31 December 2015)
Jonathon Deans CA
Michael Drummond CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
Louise Miller CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)
Louise Staite CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
Hamish Tomlinson CA
John Van der Burg CA
Nita van Grinsven CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Justine Street CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
Neil Wanden CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
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KEY POLICIES
Canterbury/Westland

Otago

Southland

Michael Rondel CA (Chair)

Mike Hawken CA (Chair)

Brad Phillips CA (Chair)

Scott Brown CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Ian Calvert CA

Mary-Anne Bricknell ACA

Andrew Douglas CA

Nigel James CA

Murray Dickinson CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Andrew Hamilton CA
(Chair to 31 December 2015)

Sheree Marrah CA

Bob King ATF
(Retired 31 December 2015)

Matt Kinraid CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Holly Russell CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Kane Templer CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

John Schol CA

Anne Marett FCA

Rosalind Whiting CA

John Goulding CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Larry Mitchell CA

Sarah Valli CA

Kelvin Mason CA
Susan O’Loughlin CA
(Retired 31 December 2015)
Laura Roseveare CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)
Erina Stockman CA

INTERNATIONAL REPRESENTATIVES
International Federation of Accountants
Representative

Committee

Rachel Grimes FCA

Board

Richard Petty FCA

Board

Anne Loveridge FCA

Nominating Committee

Tim Youngberry CA

International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (Retired 31 December 2015)

Michael Blake FCA

International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (Appointed 1 January 2016)

Angela Ryan FCA

International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

James Dickson FCA

Compliance Advisory Panel (Retired 31 December 2015)

Penny Egan FCA

Compliance Advisory Panel (Appointed 1 January 2016)

Robyn Erskine CA

Small and Medium Practices

Paul Urquhart FCA

Professional Accountants in Business Committee (Appointed 1 January 2016)

Ian McPhee FCA

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (Appointed 1 January 2016)

Confederation of Asian and Pacific Accountants
Low Weng Keong FCA

Representative/Director

Gill Cox FCA

Representative/Director

DIVERSITY

WORK HEALTH & SAFETY

We recognise that a diverse and inclusive workforce
contributes to better outcomes for our staff and
members.

We are committed to providing a safe and healthy place
to work. This means that we will:

We are implementing updated policies on Diversity
and Inclusiveness and Preventing Discrimination and
Harassment and Bullying within our workplace to
underpin our commitment to diversity.

• work in a way that keeps our people and others safe

We encourage participation in groups within our
workplace such as the Women’s Development Circle.
We continue to report under the Australian Workplace
Gender Equality Act. A copy of the most recent Gender
Equality Indicators for our Australia-based employees
can be viewed at wgea.gov.au/report/public-reports.

CODE OF CONDUCT
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
has a formal Code of Conduct for Directors, members
of the governance bodies and our people. The Code of
Conduct for our people is currently under review and will
be launched within the next quarter. The Code of Conduct
for our Board and Committee sets out expectations that
apply to each Director and member of the governance
bodies in matters of professional ethics and behaviour.
You can view a copy of the Code of Conduct on our
website.

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY
We are committed to ethical conduct. Our Whistleblower
Policy sets out guidelines to provide an opportunity for
employees, members, candidates and other stakeholders
to raise any concerns about unethical or illegal conduct
by employees, members, or Directors, or by contractors
or consultants. You can view a copy of the Whistleblower
Policy on our website.

PRIVACY POLICY
We take privacy and data security seriously. We are
committed to safeguarding the personal information of
individuals and fostering a corporate culture that values
privacy.
We deal with personal information in accordance with the
Privacy Act 1988 (Cth) (Privacy Act) and the Australian
Privacy Principles in Australia and the Privacy Act 1993
in New Zealand. We also comply with the Spam Act
2003 (Cth) in Australia and the Unsolicited Electronic
Messages Act 2007 in New Zealand, both of which impose
restrictions on sending commercial electronic messages.

• meet and exceed all health and safety requirements
• stop any work that cannot be carried out safely
• be open to new ways of being healthier and safer
• not take shortcuts or put business objectives ahead
of health and safety
• work with our people to involve them in providing a safe
and healthy workplace.

RISK MANAGEMENT
We are committed to building a strong risk awareness
culture. We have a Risk Management Policy and
framework for managing risk, ensuring continuity of
business through critical situations and disaster recovery.
Our risk management framework aligns with international
standard ISO 31000:2009 Risk Management and
operates through:
• organisational commitment
• planning
• programmes
• communication and consultation
• continuous improvement.
The Board is responsible for approving the overall risk
management framework for Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand. Management annually
review and recommend a risk management framework
to the Board including specific risk categories and risk
consequence table used in setting the organisations
Risk appetite. The Board monitors the performance of
management in accordance with that risk framework.
Responsibility for risk management is shared across
all levels of our organisation. At a management level,
the Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) identifies, assesses,
monitors and manages strategic and emerging risks,
using the risk framework. It also oversees the
management of operational risks and compliance
across the organisation.
Our independent internal and external auditors also
review key risk areas. The Internal Audit Programme is
closely aligned to the risk management framework and
involves a rolling programme of reviews to confirm the
effectiveness of the controls in place. Findings of the
internal audit are reported to the Audit & Risk Committee
and recommendations arising from the audits are
monitored by the Committee.

We also have a Privacy Officer who responds to
enquiries, complaints and requests for access to personal
information as they arise.
You can view a copy of our Privacy Policy on our website.

64

Governance

Governance
Governance

65

CORPORATE REPORTING
The Audit & Risk Committee’s key objective is to fulfil its
corporate governance and oversight responsibilities in
relation to Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand and any trusts and/or legal entities established
and or managed by Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand. This responsibility covers:

DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

• Financial reporting

• in line with market rates

• Risk management systems

• within the parameters and principles approved
by members

• Internal control systems
• Compliance

The by-laws state that remuneration of the Directors,
President and Vice Presidents shall be:
• determined by the Council, based on a
recommendation from the Nominations & Governance
Committee

• Internal and external audit arrangements.

• based on independent advice to the Nominations
& Governance Committee.

For further information on the Audit & Risk Committee
and its duties please go to the Corporate Governance
Statement on our website.

For more information about the Nominations &
Governance Committee, see the Corporate Governance
Statement, available on our website.
MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

PERFORMANCE AND REMUNERATION

The Executive Remuneration Committee:

PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD

• helps the Board consider the remuneration and
retention of the CEO and SLT

A review of Board performance is managed through
a third party. The results from the 2016 review were
provided to the Nominations and Governance Committee.
A report and action plan will be provided to the Council
at its meeting in December.

• agrees the remuneration framework, including any
proposed incentive payment for the CEO
• approves the annual remuneration budget.

PERFORMANCE OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES

The Committee appoints independent remuneration
experts to advise them on specific remuneration issues.

Each year, the SLT’s performance is reviewed by the
CEO and Head of People and Culture, and reported to
the Executive Remuneration Committee and Board.

The CEO is eligible for a bonus payment subject to the
Board evaluating and approving their performance
against a range of indicators, including:

Each executive is assessed based on:

• overall performance of Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand

• achievement of their job specifications and goals
• contribution towards specific business and strategic
objectives
• adherence to Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand’s organisational values.
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• achievement of key performance targets that reflect
the breadth of our strategic and priority activities.
As Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
is not a listed entity, it does not provide an equity-based
remuneration scheme.

FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
In this section
> Consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 30 June 2016

For the year ended 30 June 2016

Notes

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

5

52,130

50,734

Trade and other receivables

6

19,458

11,979

71,588

62,713

6

-

-

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

122,160

108,146

2,900

2,685

125,060

110,831

(30,179)

(24,020)

(8,914)

(7,383)

Administration expenses

(69,795)

(57,860)

Receivables

Information technology expenses

(16,326)

(10,954)

Property, plant and equipment

7

66,721

65,115

Intangible assets

8

5,233

4,690

Capital work-in-progress

9

2,450

1,917

74,404

71,722

145,992

134,435

Notes
Revenue
Other income
Total revenue and other income

3

Service expenses
Occupancy expenses

Other expenses

(8,024)

Total expenses
(Deficit)/Surplus before tax
Income tax expense

4

(Deficit)/Surplus after tax

(4,420)

(133,238)

(104,637)

(8,178)

6,194

-

-

(8,178)

6,194

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to surplus or deficit
Amalgamation of Business

24

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Fair value increment of freehold property

7

Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax
This Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
should be read with the accompanying notes.

-

6,078

120

(464)

3,370

-

3,490

5,614

(4,688)

11,808

Current assets

Total current assets
Non-current assets

Total non-current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Fees in advance

10

54,241

44,605

Trade and other payables

11

13,291

6,352

Provisions

12

4,592

4,573

72,124

55,530

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables

11

1,235

1,717

Provisions

12

1,024

891

2,259

2,608

Total liabilities

74,383

58,138

Net assets

71,609

76,297

6,078

6,078

(344)

(464)

Total non-current liabilities

Members’ funds
Amalgamation reserve

24

Foreign currency translation reserve
Revaluation reserve

19,767

16,397

Accumulated surpluses

46,108

54,286

Total members’ funds

71,609

76,297

This Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016

For the year ended 30 June 2016

1. Corporate information

Amalgamation
reserve
$’000

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve
$’000

Revaluation
reserve
$’000

Accumulated
surpluses
$’000

Total
$’000

6,078

(464)

16,397

54,286

76,297

(Deficit) after tax for the year

-

-

-

(8,178)

(8,178)

Other comprehensive
income

-

120

3,370

-

3,490

Total comprehensive
income/(loss)

-

120

3,370

(8,178)

(4,688)

6,078

(344)

19,767

46,108

71,609

At 1 July 2015

At 30 June 2016

The consolidated financial statements of Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 30
June 2016 were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of Directors on 7 September 2016.
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand is an
Australian registered body corporate that is governed
by its Supplemental Royal Charter and is domiciled in
Australia. Members of Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand are not liable for the debts and liabilities
of the Group.
About Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand (‘parent’)
The registered office of the Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand is:

At 1 July 2014

-

-

16,397

48,092

64,489

Surplus after tax for the year

-

-

-

6,194

6,194

33 Erskine Street Sydney NSW 2000

Other comprehensive
income

6,078

(464)

-

-

5,614

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand is a notfor-profit entity. Its principal activities during the year were:

Total comprehensive income

6,078

(464)

-

6,194

11,808

At 30 June 2015

6,078

(464)

16,397

54,286

76,297

This Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read with the accompanying notes.

For the year ended 30 June 2016
Notes

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from members and customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Net refund/(payment) for GST
5

136,680

116,242

(133,798)

(113,027)

2,872

(5,619)

5,754

(2,404)

28

2

(5,681)

(6,442)

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payment for property, plant and equipment,
intangibles and capital work-in-progress assets
Interest received
Transfer of cash on amalgamation
Net cash flows from investing activities

1,175

1,555

-

12,199

(4,478)

7,314

Net cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

1,276

Effects of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

• setting and maintaining high standards as they apply
to members to enhance their professional standing
with the public and the business community
• continuing development of government relations
and advocacy programmes in pursuit of legislative
and regulatory objectives

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

• delivering pre and post admission education and
services

5

4,910

120

(438)

50,734

46,262

52,130

50,734

• continuing development of a programme to enhance
the market and personal value of the Chartered
Accountant designation.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation
This general purpose Financial Report is prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
(AIFRS) and other authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). It has
been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for
freehold property, which has been measured at fair value
(see Note 7).
Unless otherwise stated, the report is presented in
Australian dollars (AUD) and all values, unless otherwise
stated are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
($’000).

The consolidated Financial Report refers to the parent
and its subsidiaries as if they formed a single entity.
It is made up of:
• the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
• the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
• the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity,
• the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and
• Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
The parent controls a subsidiary if all three of the
following elements are present:
• power over the investee
• exposure to variable returns from the investee, and
• the ability of the investor to use its power to
affect those variable returns.
Inter-entity transactions and balances between the
parent and subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.
See note 16 for details of subsidiaries.

(b) Statement of compliance
This consolidated Financial Report complies with
Australian Accounting Standards.
New standards and interpretation not yet adopted
The following Australian Accounting Standards and
AASB Interpretations were recently issued or amended,
but were not yet effective and were not adopted for the
annual reporting period ended 30 June 2016:
• AASB 9 Financial Instruments includes requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. AASB 9 will become mandatory for the Group’s
30 June 2019 financial statements, however it is not
expected to have a material impact.
• AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
establishes a comprehensive framework recognising
revenue. AASB 15 will become mandatory for the
30 June 2018 financial statements and the Group
is assessing the potential impact of applying this new
standard.
• AASB 16 Leases removes the current operating
and finance lease distinction, and requires entities to
recognise all material leases on the balance sheet.
AASB 16 will become mandatory for the 30 June 2020
financial statements and the Group is assessing the
potential impact of applying this new standard.
There are no new Interpretations which are expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s Financial Report.

This Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read with the accompanying notes.
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3. Revenue and expenses
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

(a) Revenue
Subscriptions and related revenue

71,479

56,792

Education and other services

50,681

51,354

122,160

108,146

1,541

866

Total revenue
Other income
Rent
Royalties

202

533

1,135

1,295

22

(9)

2,900

2,685

125,060

110,831

Wages, salaries and termination costs

49,127

40,880

Superannuation

3,238

2,929

52,365

43,809

Interest
Other revenue/(losses)
Total other income
Total revenue and other income

(III) Sale of goods

(V) Interest income

The Group recognises revenue from the sale of goods
when physical control of the goods passes to the
purchaser pursuant to an enforceable sales contract.
Risks and rewards of ownership are considered to be
passed to the buyer at the time the goods are delivered
to them.

Interest income on deposits is recognised on an accrual
basis.
(VII) Employment benefit expenses
Refer to note 12 for employee benefit expenses.

(IV) Member benefits revenue
The Group receives revenue from member-generated
activity through its member offers programme. This
revenue is accounted on an accrual basis.

(b) Expenses
Employee benefits expense

Revenue and expense recognition
Revenues and expenses are recognised where:

How we accrue for these activities depends on when they
take place:

• it is probable that their economic benefits will flow to,
or be consumed by, the Group

• On or before year end – any surplus or deficit is
incorporated into the year’s results.

• they can be reliably measured, and

• Wholly after the end of the financial year – revenue and
expenses for such activities are deferred and carried
forward in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position as Fees in advance and Prepayments
respectively.

• they meet the criteria set out below.
(I) Subscriptions
The Group’s membership subscription year is 1 July to 30
June, with fees payable annually in advance. Only those
member fee receipts that are attributable to the current
financial year are recognised as revenue.
Fee receipts for periods beyond the current financial
year are shown, (excluding any applicable taxes), in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, under the
heading of current liabilities as Fees in advance.
(II) Other revenue-generating activities
The Group undertakes certain activities which are
accounted for on a work-in-progress basis, including:
• Chartered Accountants Program modules

• Partly after the end of the financial year – a proportion
of the final projected net surplus is also recognised in
the financial year, on a percentage of completion basis.
The percentage of completion basis is apportioned as
follows:
• For Chartered Accountants Program modules
according to the time between the start of the module
and the completion of the examination.
• For other courses and activities that are delivered in
a series of events, according to the number of events
delivered at the balance date compared to the total
number of events in the series.

• training and development courses
• quality reviews
• acuity magazine
• conferences
• student activities.
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4. Income tax

5. Cash and cash equivalents
2016
$’000

2015
$’000
Cash at bank and on hand

(a) Income tax expense

Short-term deposits

The major components of income tax are:
Current income tax (benefit)

(1,465)

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years
Tax losses carried forward to future years
Aggregate income tax expense

(1,662)

405

15

1,060

1,647

-

-

(b) Numerical reconciliation between tax benefit recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income and prima facie income tax
(8,178)

6,194

Prima facie tax expense/(benefit) at the rate of 30% (2015: 30%)

3,474

(22)

9

Amortisation of intangible assets

2,290

1,481

Interest received

(1,175)

(1,555)

5,166

3,409

-

(11,643)

(7,479)

(5,504)

6,457

(975)

(21)

9

(4)

(2)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

103

12

Other (revenue)/losses

910

(3,539)

1,060

1,647

-

-

The Group prepares its income tax returns using the
principle of mutuality to the revenue and expenses and
the relevant tax jurisdiction. The principle of mutuality is
a common law principle arising from the premise that
individuals cannot profit from themselves.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax losses
and unused tax credits. This is because it’s unlikely that
the Group will generate future taxable profit which will
be available to offset against.

As such:

At balance date, accumulated revenue tax losses of
$32,517,000 (2015: $28,983,000) existed, but are not
recognised on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position.

All other receipts and payments are classified in
accordance with taxation legislation in the relevant
tax jurisdiction.
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(Deficit)/Surplus after tax
Adjustment:

Changes in working capital:

Income tax

74

4,073

Entertainment, non-deductible donations, other permanent differences

• expenses in connection with mutual activities are
therefore not deductible for taxation purposes.

50,734

6,194

15

• membership receipts from members are deemed
to be mutual income and not subject to income tax

52,130

(8,178)

1,858

Aggregate income tax expense

16,753

2015
$’000

405

Mutual activities (adjusted for specifically deductible expenses)

33,981

6,253

2016
$’000

(2,453)

Tax losses carried forward to future years

45,877

			
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows include cash at bank, cash in hand and short-term deposits, and are stated at their nominal value.

Adjustments for current income tax of previous years

Effect of tax rate in foreign jurisdiction

2015
$’000

Reconciliation of (Deficit)/Surplus after tax to cash flows from operations

(Deficit)/Surplus before tax

New premises rent holiday

2016
$’000

(Increase) of net working capital liabilities gained through amalgamation
(Increase) in receivables and prepayments
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions
Increase/ in fees in advance

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

152

(2,426)

9,636

8,541

8,766

(12,007)

5,754

(2,404)

Net deferred tax liabilities that were not recognised,
due to unrecognised temporary differences amount
to $2,468,000 (2015: $2,849,000).
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6. Trade and other receivables

6. Trade and other receivables (continued)
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Current
Trade receivables (a)
Allowance for impairment loss

14,253

5,491

At 30 June, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

(658)

(632)

Neither past due nor impaired

13,595

4,859

300

4,123

5,563

2,997

19,458

11,979

Non-trade receivables (b)
Other receivables
Prepayments
Total trade and other receivables

Non-trade receivables (c)
Provision for impairment
Net loan receivable

350

350

(350)

(350)

-

-

We regularly review the collectability of trade receivables,
and apply an impairment provision when there is evidence
that the Group won’t be able to collect the receivable.
When we identify individual debts that are uncollectible,
we write them off.
(a) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are
generally on 30-day terms. A net impairment charge of
$54,000 (2015: $220,000) has been recognised by the
Group in the current year. This amount is included in the
other expenses line in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors
with a carrying amount of $1,828,000 (2015: $2,514,000).
These were past due at the reporting date but not
considered impaired as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and we consider that the amounts
are still recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

31 – 60 days
61 – 90 days

797

1,134

163

726
654

1,828

2,514

Current

-

21

31 – 60 days

-

-

61 – 90 days
> 90 days

All other balances within trade and other receivables do
not contain impaired assets and are not past due. Based
on the credit quality of these other receivables, we expect
to receive those amounts when they are due.

Movements in the provision for impairment loss were as follows:

The Group has no receivables with renegotiated credit
terms that would have been past due under the original
terms and conditions.

Net charge for the year

(b) Current non-trade receivables are generally
non-interest bearing and are normally payable at call.
There are no non-trade receivables that are past due
at the reporting date.
(c) The Group, in conjunction with CPA Australia and
the Institute of Public Accountants, has lent funds to the
Association of Accounting Technicians (AAT) as agreed
under a Memorandum of Understanding. The noncurrent loan to AAT is $350,000 before interest, which is
charged monthly based on the 90-day bank bill rate plus
0.5%. Management has assessed the AAT loan, and an
impairment provision was created for the entire amount.
AAT missed the first repayment due on 30 June 2016,
however it was subsequently received late on 5 August
2016. AAT continues to meet its interest cost when due.

Balance at beginning of financial year
Increase in provision due to amalgamation

-

-

658

611

658

632

14,253

5,491

632

33

-

434

54

220

Amounts written off

(28)

(55)

Balance at end of financial year

658

632

2016
$’000

2016
$’000

58,000

55,387

4,928

4,905

(4,086)

(3,638)

842

1,267

5,274

4,551

(3,802)

(3,379)

1,472

1,172

9,493

8,726

(7,388)

(6,198)

2,105

2,528

7,908

7,570

(3,692)

(2,815)

4,216

4,755

187

104

(101)

(98)

66,721

65,115

7. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold property – at depreciated fair value
Furniture and equipment – at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation

Computer equipment – at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation

Less: accumulated depreciation

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises – at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation

Motor vehicles – at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total property, plant and equipment

Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2016

2,345

868

> 90 days

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises – at cost

76

11,767

Past due but not impaired:

Total

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at the
original invoice amount less an allowance for impairment.

2015
$’000

Past due and impaired:

Non-current
Loan receivable

2016
$’000
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7. Property, plant and equipment

7. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliations			

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

65,115

63,388

-

4,087

Additions

2,315

1,151

Increment in freehold property

3,370

-

(6)

(37)

Depreciation expense

(4,073)

(3,474)

Carrying amount at end of financial year

66,721

65,115

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment:
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Freehold property
Carrying amount at start of financial year
Increment
Depreciation expense

Acquired due to amalgamation
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense

55,387

56,200

3,370

-

(757)

(813)

58,000

55,387

Disposals

1,267

1,637

-

35

Valuing freehold property

(I) Impairment

22

94

Freehold property is measured at fair value, less:
• accumulated depreciation on buildings and building
plant, and

We review the carrying values of plant and equipment
for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Impairment losses are recognised as expenditure under
the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income.

-

(11)

(447)

(488)

842

1,267

Computer equipment
Carrying amount at start of financial year

Carrying amount at start of financial year
Acquired due to amalgamation (see note 24)

Furniture and equipment
Carrying amount at start of financial year

Total

• any impairment losses recognised after the date
of revaluation.
Fair value is determined by the Directors, after taking
into account:

1,172

179

-

656

• current market conditions and estimates.

Additions

1,124

976

Depreciation expense

(824)

(639)

1,472

1,172

We appoint an external valuer to perform an independent
valuation, every three years with the next valuation due at
30 June 2017.

Acquired due to amalgamation

Determining depreciation

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises
Carrying amount at start of financial year
Additions
Depreciation expense

2,528

3,325

767

81

(1,190)

(878)

2,105

2,528

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises
Carrying amount at start of financial year

4,755

2,047

-

3,385

Additions

308

-

Disposals

-

(25)

(847)

(652)

4,216

4,755

Acquired due to amalgamation

Depreciation

Carrying amount at start of financial year

6

-

Acquired due to amalgamation

-

11

Additions

94

-

Disposals

(6)

(1)

Depreciation expense

(8)

(4)

86

6
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II) Revaluations
Following initial recognition at cost, freehold property is
carried at a revalued amount. This is the fair value at the
date of revaluation, less any subsequent:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, other than
land, is calculated on a straight-line basis.

• accumulated depreciation on buildings, and

The depreciation rates take into account an asset’s
remaining useful life and estimated residual value.

To ensure the carrying amount represents fair value,
we revalue freehold property assets annually. External
valuations are conducted once every three years.

The cost of fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises
is amortised over their estimated useful lives, or the
remainder of the lease term, whichever is shorter.
Useful lives are:
Freehold property:
Building

50 years

Building plant

25 years

Furniture
Office equipment
Computer equipment

Motor vehicles

78

• the most recent external valuations, and

Freehold property is measured at revalued amounts.
As such, impairment losses on freehold property are
treated as a revaluation decrement, although only up
to the amount of existing revaluation surpluses.

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises

10 years
5 years
3 years
10 years

• accumulated impairment losses.

Generally, revaluation increments are credited to the
property revaluation reserve included in the members’
funds section of the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. The exception is where it reverses a revaluation
decrement for the same asset that was previously
recognised in profit or loss. In this case, the increase will
be recognised in profit or loss.
Conversely, devaluation decrements are recognised
in profit or loss, except where they offset a previous
revaluation increment for the same asset. In these cases,
a decrement is debited directly to the property revaluation
reserve, up to the credit balance in the revaluation reserve
for that asset.

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises Lease term
Motor vehicles

3 years

At the end of each financial year, we review our assets’
residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods,
and adjust them if appropriate. However, no adjustments
were made in the current or previous financial year.
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8. Intangibles

Valuation techniques, inputs and processes

2016
$’000

This table shows the valuation technique and inputs used to measure a freehold property’s fair value:
Valuation technique
Market approach:
Land is valued based on:
• comparable property sales transactions and
• management’s updated assessment of valuation.
Depreciated replacement cost (DRC):
Buildings are valued based on their DRC. This is
calculated as the current replacement cost of the asset,
less accumulated depreciation, reflecting the already
consumed or expired economic benefit, or obsolescence
of the asset.

Key inputs

Computer software

13,427

10,555

Less: accumulated amortisation

(8,194)

(5,865)

5,233

4,690

4,690

1,362

• Comparable property sales values.
• Allowance for location, topography, construction,
age, condition and size.
• Observation of relevant market conditions during
the year and at the time of valuation including
interest rates, stamp duty and depreciation rates.

2015
$’000

Reconciliation of intangibles
Carrying amount at start of financial year
Acquired due to amalgamation

-

1,435

2,833

3,374

(2,290)

(1,481)

5,233

4,690

Additions
Amortisation
Carrying amount at end of financial year
About intangible assets

The highest and best use of the freehold property is considered to be its current use.
Fair value hierarchy
The entire freehold property amount is categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. That is because the
adjustments made to the observable data of comparable properties are considered significant and require
the Directors to exercise judgement.
Level 3 inputs are defined as unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
There were no transfers between the different levels of the fair value hierarchy during the current or previous
financial year.
Sensitivity analysis on unobservable inputs
Unobservable inputs
Allowances for location, topography, construction, age,
condition, and size as determined by the Directors. The
cumulative net impact of these adjustments is -0.61%
to 0.36% of the total value of the freehold property.

Sensitivity of fair value measurement
to changes in unobservable inputs
Significant increases/(decreases) in these adjustments
would result in a higher/(lower) fair value of freehold
property.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less:
• any accumulated amortisation, and

period or method. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss in
the expense category consistent with the function of the
intangible asset.

• any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangibles are amortised as follows:

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite.

Computer software		

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their
useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that they may be impaired. The amortisation
period and method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life is reviewed at least every financial year end.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits of
the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation

9. Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress

3 years

Gains or losses arising from a disposal of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset.
They are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
disposed of.
The Group has no intangible assets assessed as having
an indefinite life.

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2,450

1,917

1,917

-

5,431

1,917

(4,898)

-

2,450

1,917

Reconciliation of Capital work-in-progress
(III) Disposal

Carrying amount at start of financial year

An item of property, plant and equipment will be written
off when:

Additions

• no further future economic benefits are expected
from its use, or

Carrying amount at end of financial year

• it is disposed of.
Any gain or loss that arises from the disposal of an asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income in the year the asset
is disposed of.
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Transfers to property plant and equipment and intangibles

Capital work-in-progress is software undergoing development, is expected to be completed in the next financial year
and is recorded at cost less any known impairment.
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10. Fees in advance
Members' fees

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

45,969

36,119

8,272

8,486

54,241

44,605

CA Program, training course fees and other

12. Provisions
Current

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Employee entitlements

4,592

4,573

4,592

4,573

Employee entitlements

505

405

Leasehold make good provision

519

486

1,024

891

Non-current
Fees in advance are carried at the original invoice amount
in respect of goods and services to be provided after
the year end. It includes membership fees, Chartered
Accountants Program enrolment fees, and training and
development course fees.

11. Trade and other payables
Current

The Fees in advance balance primarily relates to fees
from members and provisional members, for services that
will be delivered in the financial year ending 30 June 2017.
The amounts received are not expected to be refunded
and will be recognised as revenue in the financial year
ending 30 June 2017.

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Trade payables

7,868

4,715

Other payables

5,039

1,340

Lease liabilities

384

297

13,291

6,352

Non-current
Lease liabilities

Trade payables are carried at cost. They represent
liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group
prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and
arise when the Group becomes obliged to make payment
for these goods and services in the future. Trade payables
are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on a
30-day term.

1,235

1,717

1,235

1,717

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the
future for goods or services received, whether or not billed
to the Group. Payables are normally settled on 30-day
terms and no interest is incurred on these payables.

Provisions are recognised when:
• there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and

(b) Termination benefits
Liabilities for termination benefits are recognised
in the provision for employee benefits when:
• the Group is demonstrably committed to terminate
the employee, or

• a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

• where an offer is made in order to encourage
voluntary redundancy.

(a) Long service leave

Depending on when we expect to settle the liability,
employee termination benefits are measured as:

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the
provision for employee benefits. It's measured as the
present value of expected future payments for services
provided by employees up to the reporting date using
the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given
to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of
employee departures, and periods of service. Expected
future payments are discounted using market yields at
the reporting date on Australian Corporate Bonds with
terms to maturity and currencies that match, as closely
as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

• Within 12 months – the amount we expect to pay
at the settlement date.
• More than 12 months after the reporting date –
a discounted amount, using market yields on 		
Australian Corporate Bonds that have terms to
maturity and currencies that match, as closely
as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

13. Commitments
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Within one year

3,798

3,985

Between one and five years

14,091

9,903

More than five years

2,639

713

20,528

14,601

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

1,887

892

647

1,263

-

-

2,534

2,155

Operating leases – office space

The leases are all non-cancellable operating leases.

Expenditure commitments
Within one year
Between one and five years
More than five years

Expenditure commitments relate to the Group’s IT software licence fees, subscriptions and contributions to universities
for research.

82

Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2016

Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2016

83

14. Contingent liabilities

17. Financial instruments

Indemnities for bank guarantees to the lessors
of premises occupied under operating leases

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Fair values

1,058

1,056

The estimated net fair values of financial assets and liabilities held at the balance sheet date are represented
by their carrying amounts. The net fair value of a financial asset or liability is:
• the amount at which the asset could be exchanged, or
• the liability settled in a current transaction between willing parties, after allowing for transaction costs.

15. Auditor’s remuneration

Audit services

2016
$

2015
$

360,423

275,000

Other services:

Notes

Total
$’000

Loans and
receivables
measured at
amortised cost
$’000

Financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

5

52,130

52,130

-

Trade receivables

6

13,595

13,595

-

Other receivables

6

300

300

-

Total current financial assets

66,025

66,025

-

Total financial assets

66,025

66,025

-

11

(13,291)

-

(13,291)

11

(1,235)

-

(1,235)

(14,526)

-

(14,526)

51,499

66,025

(14,526)

2016

Consulting and other costs

-

132,928

The auditor also provided audit services to the Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited,
Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund and the Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances Fund
on a complementary basis.

16. Unlisted shares in other Entities
The Parent has an interest in the following corporations:
Name of corporation

Financial assets and liabilities by categories:

Country of incorporation

Current financial assets

Percentage of ownership
2016
2015

Current financial liabilities

Non-current financial liabilities

Chartered Accountants Benevolent
Foundation Limited

Australia

100%

100%

Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand (Singapore) Private Limited

Singapore

100%

100%

Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand (Hong Kong) Limited

Hong Kong

100%

100%

CAANZ (UK) Limited

United Kingdom

100%

100%

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables
Total financial liabilities
Net financial assets/(liabilities)
2015
Current financial assets

CA ANZ (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

100%

-

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand has
control of:

These entities' results have been consolidated into this
consolidated Financial Report at 30 June 2016.

• Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
(Singapore) Private Limited

The Parent’s results are materially consistent with the
consolidated financial results and hence separate Parent
disclosures are not disclosed.

• Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
(Hong Kong) Limited
• CAANZ (UK) Limited
• CA ANZ (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd, and
• New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants
(NZICA).
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Cash and cash equivalents

5

50,734

50,734

-

Trade receivables

6

4,859

4,859

-

Other receivables

6

4,123

4,123

-

Total current financial assets

59,716

59,716

-

Total financial assets

59,716

59,716

-

11

(6,352)

-

(6,352)

11

(1,717)

-

(1,717)

(8,069)

-

(8,069)

51,647

59,716

(8,069)

Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited
is the Trustee for Chartered Accountants Scholarship
Fund and Chartered Accountants Necessitous
Circumstances Fund. The purpose of these funds is to
provide scholarships and to provide financial assistance
to people in financial hardship.

Current financial liabilities

Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited,
Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund and Chartered
Accountants Necessitous Circumstances Fund have not
been consolidated as the Group does not have the ability
to use its power to affect the amount of return from
these entities.

Total financial liabilities

Trade and other payables
Non-current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net financial assets/(liabilities)
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18. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s principal financial instruments are comprised
of cash and receivables.

Credit risk

20. Director and executive disclosures
(a) Details of key management personnel

Management believes that the Group does not have
a concentration of credit risk. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the cash
at bank and short-term deposits which are held with
financial institutions with a credit rating of AA- or better
and receivables which are generally high volume and low
individual amount.

(I) Directors, President and Vice Presidents

Liquidity risk

M Blake FCA
M Forde FCA

• monitoring levels of exposure to interest rates

This is the risk that, as a result of our operational liquidity
requirements, the Group:

• conducting ageing analysis and monitoring specific
credit balances to manage credit risk

• will not have sufficient funds to settle a transaction
on the due date

L McCann

• will be forced to sell financial assets at a value less
than what they are worth, or

J Palermo FCA

Appointed 1 October 2015

• monitoring liquidity risk through the development of
future rolling cash flow forecasts.

F Hutchings FCA

Retired 31 December 2015

The Board reviews and agrees on policies for managing
each of these risks.

• may be unable to settle or recover a financial asset
at all.

D McKay

Resigned 30 June 2016

M Waldron FCA

Resigned 30 June 2016

D McAteer

Appointed 1 August 2016

Market risk

The Group receives a substantial part of its cash inflows
at the beginning and end of the financial year and
manages its expenditure within these cash inflows and
approved funding arrangements.

L White FCA

Chief Executive Officer

Most of the Group’s financial liabilities, such as payables
and accruals to suppliers and employees, are due within
30 days. Other long term liabilities that are due in more
than 12 months include lease liabilities and long term
provisions.

K Picard FCA

Chief Financial Officer

R Ward FCA

Head of Leadership and Advocacy

J Dale FCA

Head of Education

S Grant FCA

Head of Members

To help reduce liquidity risk, we have a liquidity policy
which sets targets for the minimum and average level
of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained.

L Morta

Chief Information Officer

J Abbott

Head of People and Culture

K Patterson

New Zealand Country Head

The Group manages its exposure to key financial risks
in accordance with its financial risk management policy.
The objective of the policy is to support the delivery of the
Group’s financial targets while protecting future financial
security.
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
We use different methods to measure and manage these
risks including:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. The main components
of market risk to the Group are interest rate risk and
currency risk.
Interest rate risk
This is the risk that movements in variable interest rates
will affect financial performance by increasing interest
expenses or reducing interest income. The Group is
exposed to floating interest rates on its cash and fixed
interest rates on its term deposits. The effect of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate will result
in an immaterial amount of change to interest revenue.
Currency risk
This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in exchange rates.
We manage currency risk by the natural hedge of having
enough receipts and cash reserves in New Zealand dollars
to cover New Zealand dollar payments. As such, the
expected currency risk is not significant.
We are also exposed to currency risk from our foreign
operations in Malaysia, United Kingdom, Hong Kong and
Singapore. However, at 30 June 2016, these activities
were immaterial and the risk is minimal.
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19. Related party transactions
The Group made related party payments to certain
parties, including partners or employees of Directorrelated entities. They included:

D Scammell FCA
J Stanton FCA

Appointed 1 January 2016

K Murphy FCA
M Jack FCA
A Waters FCA

N Paviour-Smith FCA

(II) Executives

Executives are classified as the Chief Executive Officer and his Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) who are the authorised
key decision makers for the organisation.

• gifts and fees to guest speakers at training and
development events
• author, group leader, reviewer, exam setting and exam
marking fees for the Chartered Accountants Program
modules
• reviewer fees for the Quality Review Programme.
The payments to all parties were made on the same
terms and conditions.
The Group also provides complimentary accounting and
administration services for the Chartered Accountants
Benevolent Foundation Limited, Chartered Accountants
Scholarship Fund and the Chartered Accountants
Necessitous Circumstances Fund.
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(b) Compensation of key management personnel
(I) Compensation policy
Remuneration of the Directors and SLT is determined
and approved by the Executive Remuneration Committee,
which assists the Board. This committee also reviews
remuneration levels for all employees. It is appointed by
the Board and comprises three members of the Board,
currently Michael Forde (Chair), Murray Jack and Mary
Waldron (up to 30 June 2016). The Board confirms the
membership of the committee and appoints the Chair
annually. The Chair of the Board is not eligible to be the
Chair of the Committee.
To ensure equity in our remuneration decisions, we use
salary bands to establish remuneration ranges for jobs
of similar value. The Group benchmarks jobs for job sizing

using a well-established methodology that provides
remuneration ranges for salary bands based on job size.
In structuring remuneration ranges, we aim to remain
competitive and positioned appropriately for the scope
and size of our operations.

22. Members and members’ liability

To determine fees for Directors and Office bearers,
we use:

• members are not entitled to receive a dividend from
the Group

• Director: Benchmark data.

• former members remain liable for all monies they owed
the Group at the time they ceased to be a member.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net
of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation authority.

23. Summary of other accounting policies

(b) Foreign Currency translation

Goods and services tax (GST)

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated into Australian dollars at 30 June, at the rate
of exchange prevailing at reporting date. This has an
impact on the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss,
which is translated at the average monthly exchange rate
that prevailed at the dates of the transactions, during the
course of the year.

• Audit and Risk Chair: Benchmark data.
• Chair: Double the Director fee.
• President: 120% of the Chair fee.
• Vice President: Benchmark data.

(II) Compensation of Directors and executives for the year
2015
$’000

4,071

3,792

Other long-term benefits

-

-

Termination benefits

-

-

4,071

3,792

(III) Loans to key management personnel
There are no loans between key management personnel
and the Group.

• where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods or
services is not recoverable from the taxation authority.
In this case, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset, or as part of the expense item,
as applicable.
• on receivables and payables which are stated with the
amount of GST included.

Compensation by category
Short-term benefits

In terms of the Group’s Charter and By-Laws:

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of GST except:

The benchmarks we use are approved by the Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand Council.

2016
$’000

Total membership increased to 116,838 as of 30 June
2016 (2015: 115,109).

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation authority is included as part of receivables
or payables in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position.
For all fees in advance that are subject to GST, a liability
for GST payable is raised. The exception is for fees in
advance that have a settlement date, in respect of the
GST liability, that occurs before the balance date (at which
stage the liability will have already been settled).

Cash flows are included in the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows on a gross basis, and the GST component of
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities,
which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority, is classified as part of operating cash flows.

These exchange differences are recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve.
On amalgamation, the assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated into Australian dollars.
Differences are recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve. See the Consolidated Statement
of Changes of Equity for details on the foreign currency
translation reserve.

21. Indemnification of Directors and Officers
The parent’s by-laws provide that each Director and
Officer will be indemnified against any losses or expenses
that they incur or become liable to pay by reason of any
act or deed done by the Director or Officer in discharging
their duties, unless the act or deed arises from the
Director’s or Officer’s own wilful default.
Furthermore, Directors and Officers are not liable for:
• the acts of any person
• joining in any receipt or document
• any act of conformity, or
• any loss or expense happening to the Group
unless it arises from the Director’s or Officer’s own
wilful default.
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24. Amalgamation

Directors’ declaration

On 31 December 2014, NZICA transferred all its assets and liabilities to the Parent as part of the amalgamation.
The amalgamation enables the Group to achieve greater scale, increased member services, accelerated member
growth, and greater global recognition and influence.

The Directors of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand declare
that the consolidated financial statements and notes set out on pages 69 to 88,
which have been prepared as required under the By-Laws:

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of NZICA as at the date of acquisition were:

(a) comply with Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements

Fair value
on acquisition date
$’000
Cash and cash equivalents

12,199

Receivables and other assets

2,996

Plant and equipment

4,087

Intangible assets

1,435

Total assets

20,717

Fees in advance

10,928

Payables and other liabilities

2,632

Provisions
Total liabilities

1,079
14,639

Total identifiable nets assets at fair value

(b) present fairly the financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2016 and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
In the opinion of the Directors, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the
Parent will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

				
M Jack FCA		
M Blake FCA
Director 			Director
Sydney, 7 September 2016

6,078

The fair value amounts represent the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer the liability
in an orderly transaction in the principal market at the acquisition date.
There was no consideration paid or payable to NZICA or the members of NZICA in respect of the amalgamation.
Instead, members of NZICA were provided equal membership rights in the Parent on acquisition date. As both
the Parent and NZICA are not-for-profit organisations and members do not have rights to distribution of profits,
the value of the Parent’s membership rights are deemed to be equivalent value of the fair value of net assets
received on acquisition date. Hence, there was no goodwill or gain on amalgamation.

25. Events after the reporting period
Between the end of the financial year and the date of this Financial Report there has been no item, transaction
or event of a material and unusual nature that is likely, in the opinion of the Directors, to affect significantly the
operations of the Group, or the state of affairs of the Group in future financial years.
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Annual General Meeting (AGM)
The 88th Annual General Meeting of Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand will be
held at our Melbourne office:
Level 18, 600 Bourke Street,
Melbourne Victoria, Australia
on Wednesday 7th December 2016
at 4.30pm.

ABOUT US
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand is a professional body
of 117,000 diverse, talented and financially astute members who utilise
their skills every day to make a difference for their clients and the public
the world over.
Members are known for their professional integrity, principled judgment,
financial discipline and a forward-looking approach to business which
contributes to the prosperity of our nations.
We focus on the education and lifelong learning needs of our members,
and engage in advocacy and thought leadership in areas of public interest
that impact the economy and domestic and international markets.
We are a member of the International Federation of Accountants, and are
connected globally through the 800,000-strong Global Accounting Alliance
and Chartered Accountants Worldwide which brings together leading
Institutes in Australia, England and Wales, Ireland, New Zealand, Scotland
and South Africa to support and promote over 320,000 Chartered
Accountants in more than 180 countries.
We also have a strategic alliance with the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. The alliance represents 788,000 current and
next generation accounting professionals across 181 countries and
is one of the largest accounting alliances in the world providing a full
range of accounting qualifications to students and business.
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Thank you

Thanks for being part of our success this year.
If you have any feedback on this report,
please get in touch at
annualreport@charteredaccountantsanz.com

